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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Applied Research [nternationalprivate Limitecl

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Applied Research
Internatiotral Pril'ate Limited ("hereinafter as ret-erred to as "the Holding Cornpany") and its
subsidiaries (the l-lolding C'ornpany and its subsicliaries together referred ro as "thi Group")
and its Joint Venture, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 3l,Z0Z5
and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income)
and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
sumrnary ol' material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinaiter
referred to as "the consolidated financial statements"),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the other financial information of its subsidiaries and joint venture, the afbresaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act.20l3
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the act read with Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Rules,20l5, as amended, ("lnd AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the cottsolidated state of affairs of the Group and of its joint u.niur.
as at March 31,2025 and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive incorne,
tlteir consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
and its Joint Venture in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by thelnstitute of Charterecl
Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of'Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those nlatters that, in our professional judgement and based on the

consideration of the audit reports of the other auditors on standalone financial statenrents/

consolidatecl financial statements and on the other financial information ofthe subsidiaries, joint

ventures and associates, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

statemeuts of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have detenrined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

infonnation comprises the information included in the Directors' Report but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The above referred

information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and

we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit ofthe consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is

materially inconsistent with the consolidated flnancial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other Intbrmation included in the company's annual Report, if we conclude that

there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to tltose

charged with governance and take appropriate action necessitated by the circunrstances and the

applicable laws and regulations.

Itesponsibilities of Management and 'Ihose Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements
The Holding Cornpany's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to preparation ofthese consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of' the consolidated financial position. consolidated financial
performance (including other comprehensive income) and consolidated changes in equity and

consolidated cash flows ofthe Group including itsjoint venture in accordance with lnd AS and

other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group and ofitsjoint venture are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the

assets and lor preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropliate accounting policiesl making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company. as aforesaid.
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alternative but to do so

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the

comparries included in the Group and of its Joint Venture are responsible for assessing the

ability of their respective companies to continue as a going concern' disclosing' as applicable'

matters related to going concern and using the goiig *ntt'n basis of accounting unless

management either i"t",iO, to liquidate the company or to cease operations' or has no realistic

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its Joint

Venture are responsiLt. fo, overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its

Joint Venture

Auditor,s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial statements

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement' whether due to fraud or error' and

to issue an auditor's refort that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken onihe basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

proiessional skepticism throughout the audit' We also

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures.responsive to

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher

than fbr one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internaI control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appripriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we

are also responsible'fo.'.*pr.rsing our opinion on whether the Holding company has

adequate internal financial iontrols system with reference to financial statements in place

and ihe operating effectiveness ofsuch controls'

r Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

r Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group

and its Joint Venture to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to

modify or"rr opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date

of our auditor's repoft. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its

Joint Venture to cease to continue as a going concern'

*
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company among other
matters, the planned scope and timing ofthe audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.
and where applicable. related saleguards.

0ther Matters
We did not audit the financial statements of, Three subsidiaries incorporated outside India,
which reflect total assets of Rs.635.33 Lakhs as at March 3l .2025. total revenue of Rs,1772.41
Lakhs, total net profit/(loss) after tax of Rs.130.96 Lakhs, total comprehensive income/ (loss) ol
Rs. I l0.l I Lakhs and net cash flows of Rs. 308.1 I Lakhs and One joint venture incorporated
outside lndia, which reflect total net profit/(loss) after tax of Rs. (7.85) l-akhs and total
comprehensive income/ (loss) of Rs. (7.85) Lakhs. for the year ended on that date, as
consitlelcd in the consolidated llnancial statelncnts.

The tlnancial statements ofabove Three subsidiaries incorporated outside India and One joint
venture incorporated outside India are unaudited and have been certified and fumished to us by
the Management of Holding Company and our opinion on the consolidated lirrarrcial
statemcllts, in so f'ar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect ol these
subsidiaries and joint venture is solcly bascd on such unaudited llnancial statcments.

Oul opinion on the consolidated tlnancial statcments arrd oul repor.t on Other. I-egal ancl
Regulatory Requirernents is given below. is not rnodilled in respect ol'the above matters with
rcspect to our reliancc on such flnancial statements certificd by the Managetnent.

o
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Ileport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
l. The Holding Company does not have subsidiary, associate orjoint venture incorporated in

India. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2020 ("the Order") issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section ( I I ) of section 143 of the Act
with respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4. according to the
infbrmation and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO report issued by us for
the Holding Company, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the
CARO repoft.



2. The Holding Company does not_ha.re subsidiary. associate orjoint venture incorporated inIndia. As required by Secrion 143 f :l of tfl. e.i1 *lr.i"n ,f,",
a) we have sought and obtained a, the information and explanations which to the best ofour knowredge and berief were necersary fo. ri" prrp"r"r o'our audit ofthe aforesaidconsolidated fi nancial statements;

b) ln our opinion proper books of,account as required by law relating to preparation oftheaforesaid consoridated financiar staremenrs h;;;;; kept so rar as it appears from ourexamination of those books;

c) The consoridated Barance Sheet, the Consoridared statement of profit and Loss(including orher comorehensive Income) r"l-ir. CJ^.oriaated statemenr of chansesin Equiry and the corisorir,arer, Cash er.i* lli.r*"i';;;[-;t,i;.;;i.;;,;;Xi;
agreement with the books of account maintained ror the purpose of preparation of thJconsolidated fi nancial statementsi

d) In our opinion, the aforesa id- con soridated financiar statements compry with the Ind ASspecified under Section I33 0fthe act reao 
'"itr' 

relerunirit* irru.a thereunder and rerevanrprovisions ofthe Act;

e) 0n the basis of written representations received from the directors or the HordinaCompany as on March 31. 2025 and taken "; r;;";J;; ,r,. eour.l-oi. ;i;;;;lir:Frording company, none of-trre dir."tor', ortt. Hoiain"/corpuny is disquariried as onMarch lr' 2025 tiom being appointc<J as a airector in-t*.r. ofsection r64(2) or thc

l) with rcspcct ro the adeouac;' or'rhc inrcrnirr Irnanciar corlrors over r'inanciar r.eponirrgor'rhc Hording conrpanj rni rrrc ,,pcrari.,g .rir.iir.r.* or sucrr conrrors. rerer ro ourseparate rsport in Annexure,.A'.:

g) Since the Holding company is.a private company. the provisions of section 197 of theAcr are nor applicable. Accordingly. no ,"ponin['i, ,.i'rir.a *irt,, respecr [o the othern'ratters to be incruded in the Audiior's neport i,iu"coriunce with the requirements ofsection | 97( I 6) of the Act; and

h) with respect to the other matters to be incruded in the Auditor,s Report in accordancewith Rute lt oflthe Comoanies leua;t anJ auaii;r;jH[r, 2014, as amended, in ouropinion and to the best oi" orr inro"rutio; il;.#orr'to the expranations given to

i' The Group has discrosed rhe impac^t.of pending litigations on the consoridatedflnanciar position o'the c_roup and of it, .loinri"-ntrre in its consoridated financialstatements _ Ref'er Note J9 to the consolidated financiat statements.

ii' The Group and its Joinr 
.venture did not have any long+erm contracts incrudingderivative conrracrs lor nhich rhere were ,"t ;;;;lri;or.seeable losses.

PAD
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IV

Place:New Delhi
Date:l0tl' May 2025

vi

(i).The Management have represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief ,
no fund have been advanced or loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds ) by the Holding company to
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("lntermediariis")
with the understanding , whether recorded in writing or otherwise , that the
intermediary shall , directly or irrdirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of tlre Holding company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaif
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii).The Management have represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no fund have been received by the Holding Company from any persons or entities
including foreign entities ("Funding parties") with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding company shall, directly or
indirectll, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

(iii). Based on the audit procedures performed by us that has been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
above. contain any material misstatement.

The Holding Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which include test check, the Holding company has
used an accounting software for rnaintaining it books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with. Furthennore, the audit trail has been preserved by the
Holding company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For G.M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Nunrber: lO47 67W

Abhishek Singh
Paftner

Membership Number: 40i 549
UDIN :2 5407 5498MO\rIr4Y56 I e
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Annexure A to the Indepcndent Auditor's Report

Referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under the heading "Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of
our report of even date on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2025;

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of Applied Research International Private Limited ("the Holding Company") as of
March 31,2025 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Holding Cornpany for the year ended on tlrat date.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Holding Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2025,
based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the
Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Cuidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Holding Company's management is responsible fbr establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the criteria for
internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the 'ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design. implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively lor
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Flolding
Cornpany's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Aud itor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial
controls with ret-erence to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,20l3, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all matcrial respects.

Our audit involved performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with ret-erence to consolidated
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial con

*
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Meaning of Internal Financial
sta tements

Place: New Delhi
Date: I Otr, May 2025

Controls with reference to consolidated financial

Abhishek Singh
partncr

Membership Num ber: 407 549
UDIN :254075498MO\/My56 
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exists' and testing and evaluating rhe design and operating effectiveness of internal controlbased on rhe assessed risk. Thi p.;Jr?;-;;*,i;o oli.ro on rhe audiror.s judgmenr.inctuding rhe assessmenr or tne ,ir[.-oi ilri.rrri'i ir"rL"#ln, o, ,n" consoridated financiarstatetnents. whether due to fraud or error.

we believe that the audit evidence,we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

iiil.i:i .H:l1|rt 
opin ion on rhe uo Ia i ng iffi;;'; il:J; n;;,; il";;;ili. :;#;';;.,

A Company's internal financiar contror with rererence to consoridated financiar statements is aprocess designed to provide 
_r:u.onuql". 

,r1r1un." 
'*g"rii"g 

the reiiability of financialreponing and the prepararion of consoridat.o nnun. iuiliriemenrs rbr exrernar purposes inaccordance wirh genera'y accepted ,..orrting'prin.ipr.ri a con,,,puny,s internar financiar

;il::::.:lt?ri:-rence 
to consolidated n"'Eii .*,".r.nts incrudes those poricies and

(l) Penain to the maintenance..of records that, in reasonabre detair, accuratery and fairryreflect the transactions and dispositions 
"i;; ;;.;r;;;e company;

(2) Provide reasonabre assurance that rransactions are recorded as necessary to permilpreparation of consoiidated. financiar *u,"r.nir ii u".-oroun." with generary acceDtedaccuunring principles. and thar.receiprs r".r .*p"rair*r'oftf,. C"rir:ny rri ri.,i_ Iiil.only in accordance with authorisari";, 
"i;r;;;;;.nl'un,0i...,o.. orthe Company: and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection ol unauthorisedacquisition' use' or disoosirion oltne c"oiparyr lrrJ,. irr", could have a material elfecron the consolidated financial statemenls.

Because of the inherent rimitations of internar financiar controis with reference to financial
i:ffi|[.]1.,,:il::,,,Tj.":: ::,i:1.._",,,,,,", "; 

;;;;p;;';",asemenr override of contrors.
o r, n y . u u r, ut i t n ;;, il ffi ;i;";Hl'jil 

r. 
ffi 

,."f .J 
i,; 1i ff :,[ i:,;ffi 

"ti.:;,rum* l:future periods are subiect ro the risk. ,r-," irr. lrl"rr.r' rillrcirr contror with reference rcrtinancial sratements rn"av become inaAeqrate'becau-;.'"f'"ir"r* in conditions, or thal thcdegrce or'compliance wiih rhe poticies 
", ;r;.;j;;;".r"oo.r,o*,..

Inherent Limitations of Interna I
Iina ncial statemen ts

Financial Controls with rcference to consolidated

For G.M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: I 047 67 W

NOIDA
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Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN : U73100DL1998PTC097280
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 3l March 2025
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particula rs Note no As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

As at
April 1,2023

As at

A.
(l)

Asscts
Notr currenl assets
(a) Property, plmt and equipment
(b) Right ofuse assets
(o) Other intangible assets

(d) Itrvetsments accounted for using Equity Method
(e) Financial assets

(i) Inans
(ii) Other financia.l assets

(0 Defered tax assets (net)
(g) Other non cunent assets

Totrl non-current assels

Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above
(iv) toans
(v) Others financial assets

(c) CunentTaxAssets(Net)
(d) Other current assets

Total current assels

Totsl assets (l+2)

Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Otherequity
Equity sttributable to owrers ofthe Holding Conpany
Non{ontrolling interests

Total cquity

a

3

4

5

6
7

8

9

2',10.47

986 24
t49.87

6.56

8.97
1,169.85

3s2.64

t74.23

493.96

t,314.67
199.90

t4.4t

10.09

2,034.12

280.39
1 38.1 5

762.37

1,643.10

250. I 8

9.6t

2,s4s.93

159.98

I 38.s6
3.1 ,1,,18s.69 5,509.73

(2)

l0 78.23

2,724.64
2,623.t8

t72.44
1 58.1 2

t,624 76

614.85

72.8t 3 I 8.24

ll
t2
l3
t4
l5
t6
l7 .45

949.82
2,618.30

0.50
3.08

t,329.72
982.t4
440.13

r,608.14
892.48
t75.55

3.07
t,996.64

857.99

589.63
6,396.50 6,441.73

ll.3 18.51 10,882. I 9 I 1.951.46

B.
(t)

l8
l9

t32.87 153.00

6928.43
153.00

6.38 t.5 I65 t6.49
6,649.J6 7,081.43 6,534.5t

7,081.43 6,534.51

(2) Non current liabilities
(a) Financialliabilities

(i) Lease liabilities
(ii) Other Finanoial Liabilities

(b) Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

(3) Currentlisbilities
(a) Financialliabilities

(i) Borowings
(ii) lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables
total outstanding dues ofmioro enterprises and small enterprises
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises aod small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities

(b) Other curent liabilities
(c) Provisions

Total curretrt liabilities

Total liabilities (2+3)
Total equity and liabilities (l+2+3)

Material accounting policies
Sce accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached,

For and on beholf of
G.M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Fim Regn. No. 104767W

Abhishek Singh
Partner
Membership No.: 407549

2.201.34 3,660.94

3,800.75 s,416.95
I l,3t&51 t0,882.19 I t.951.46

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Applied Reseuch

Director
DIN No: 10977894

20

2t

Atluri

DIN No: 00056050

Place: New Delhr

7.28

t,280.32
634 08

893.02
82.s3

t99.95
408.88

r,132.89
172.38

837.08 1,102.51 t,323.95

496 91 432.06
t,599.42 1,7s6.01

1)

23
24

25

26

27

265.42 287 24 317.25

t5.22
441.05

283.s9

2,452.71
l5l.06

3.

Place: New Delhi
Date: l0th May 2025

o
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Applied Resilrch Intemaiiond Private Limit.d
CIN: U73100DLl998PTC09?280
Cortolid.acd Statemcrt ofProlii rnd Loss

(Amountr rr in IllR L.$ uDlBr oah.Nilc ltatcd)

Particulrrs Note Do

For lhe yesr ctrded
Mar.h 31, 2025

I'or the year ended
Mrr(h 31,2024

hcoc:
Rcvenue from opqrations

Other in@mo

Totsl itrcomr
Erpcnrcr:
Cost of mtcrills goosumed

Openting Exponses
(lncrscydoc.ose h invenoris of fioished goods, wotk-inprogr*s and mded

Employ€e benefi ts expeNo
Dopr6i&tion and.mortiation expense

Fimoce @sb
Othcr exp€e
Totd ctpolq
Profir(Ltr) brforc th.rc of profit of r$oci.te./ joirt vcoturq ud dceptiond
itcro
Shue of Profit(loss) of itrvest nen6 acaouted for Ning equity method

Proliu(Lrr) bcforc qccptionel itcmr and tu crpcnrs
Ex€ptioml iEms (net of tax)

Prolit(Iprr) bclorc tu qlFDtq
T[ crpcltc:

(l) Curenttrxexpense
(2) Tax relating to erliet )tm
(3) Defered trx (credir/charge

Totd t r ?rpatrtc

Profit(I{r!) for lhe ycar

Other comprehotrtiye income(lot!)
(i) Itcru tbrt will not be rslrtlificd to profit or lots

(i) Remcurement of defined benefit plans gain(loss)

- lncome lax relating to items that will not be rsldsfied subsequently lo profit or loss

(ii) ItaN thrr ril bc rcclrtlified to profit or lost
(i) Exchange differencd oo translating the fioancial ststemenis ofa foreigtr operation

- Income tax relating to items th8t will be r@lcsified to prolit or loss

(ii) Equity instruments through other comprehetrsive in@me
- Incom€ tax relating to items thst will be t$lassified to profit or loss

Othor comprehenriyc income fot the ye.r (not oftar)

Tot.l compr.hcnsiv. ircome for the pcriod/yesr

Profit (Lort) for thc yer sttribuarblc to :

Attributable to Owners ofHolding Company

Attributable to Noo-@ntrolling itrterests

Profit for the yc.r

Oth.r coDprehcotiva itrcoDc for abc yelr rt ributsblc to!

Att ibuEble to Owoers of the Holding compmy

Anributable to Non-oontrolling interests

Other comprehEiivc itrcomc for the ye$

Totrl comprrhensiv. hcomc for the year attributsble lo:

Atributable to Owners ofthe Holding company

Attributabl€ to Non-controlling interess
Totrl comp.ehensivr income for the year

E.mhgr pcr lquify rhrrc (frcc vrluc ofRr. 2/- pcr rherc):

Bsic (Rs)

Diluted (Rs)

Mstcrirl sccourliog policid

Se rcconpeaying oolB form an intcgnl p.rt ofthoc conrolidrtcd fuucid rlragm@ts

Ar per our rcport of cven drtr ittrcbcd.

c.M. Krpadir & Co.
Chartered Arcoununts
Firm Regn. No. 1047671v

(32. 15) (l 10.65)

745.33 258.t1

r,969.E6 56r.20

28
29

t3,739.27
375.40

9, I 71.96

417.37

l4,rl4.6E 9,sE9.34

30

3l
32

33

34
35

36

2,454.2t
l,102.83

6.70

4,850.27

577.39

t34.52

??51 12

1,317.05

977.52
246.16

3,502.9t
676.92
t62.7 t

r,890.63

11,f,91.6{ t,774.59
2,12a.04 E14.75

(7.8s) 5.26

2.115.19 820.01

7'77.48 367.75

t.7l

(l 30.2e)

35.84

(19.55)

8.94

(25.r3)
4.27

(4.4e)
0.82

(r rs.3r) (14.2E)

t,E54.55

I,969.E6

546.92

561.21

1,969.E6 561.2t

(l r5.31) (r4.28)

llls.rl) (14.2E)

l 854.55 546.92

1854.55 546.92

37

rJ8.32
lJE.32

36.6E

J6.6t

Abhishek
Partner

For and otr behrlf ofthc ofDirectors
Applied Research Limited

Sanjay Kumrr
Director

DIN No: 10977894
Membechip No.: 407549

Plqce: New Delhi
Date: lolh May 2025

Atluri
Director

DIN No: 00056050

Place: New Delhi
Date: I oth May 2025
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Applied Rescsrch Ioternstioml Privrtc Limit.d
CIN: U73l00DLl998PTC0972t0
Conrolidsted Strttment of Csth Flow
(Amount! .re itr INR Lact udeit otheflise ltrlcd)

Particulan For thc yesr ended For thc ycrr crdcd

A: CASH FLOW FROM TINC ACTIVITIES:
Pro6(Lo5s) bcforc ax
Adjuttmtr$ for:
Deprcciatiotr aod amonization expensE

Shile of profit & Loss from Joint Vflture( Equity Method)

Finanft @st

Provision for Wamty Expeow

Provisior for gratuity

Provision for compensted Abstr€s
Provision for bonuV Unpaid Bonus

Unwinding of dircoul on Secuity deposit

Liabilities no longer rcquired winen back

Balances written off
lnterqt inrcme
Allowan* for exgected credit loss

Unrcalised foreign exchege Gainy loss

Bad Debts writto off
(Profit)&oss on sal€ of property, plaot ud equipment

Opcrotitrg prolit bcforc *orking capitol changes

Adj usted for:
(lncrease/drcrcase in inveotories

(hcre6eYd*rcse itr rsde rceivables
(lncrw/dmrcoe in other financial ssets
(lncrw,)/dorere in olher Curent assets

(Increas/drcrcase in curetrt tax asEts
(tncrease/drcrere in otherNotr{urent Assets

Increod(decmse) in trade pa,"bles

Increoe(dwrose) in other finucial liabilities

Increase(drcrca*) in Provisions

Mrrch 31, 2025

2,715.19

March 2024

820.01

676.92577.39

7.85

t34.52
(73.e0)

E3.80

8.90
1.05

(0.34)
(2.29)
0.94

(249.99)
30.70

(67.77)
t34.44

(1.e7)

3,29t.52

(5.41)
(i,893.99)

512.42

236.68

403.38

(108.34)
1,087.65

225.3t
(29.35)

(s.26)

162.7t
17.68

14.48

6.50
2.O3

(0.3 r)
(4e.72)

0.94

(286.89)

80.46

(3.2r)
187.30

t17.64

1,E61.29

245.42

3E9.62

t,248.66
149.50

(t24.ts)
(120.00)
(2s6.32)
rr< <,

24.5'l

ln
flow (urcd in)/Scneretcd ia opcr.tioos 3,486.98

h of
N.t crlh scrcrutcd/ (used in) {A} 2-161 .65 1.965.42

B: CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase ofpropcrty, plot md equipm€nt

Prmeeds from sale of property, plmt ud equiPment

Loan granted

Net investmeot in fixed deposits

lnterst rwived

(68.r8)
94.7 L

(153.92)
( l7 1.94)

271.05

(227.09)

19.61

(l0.ll)
175.05

211.27

Net cash (u!cd in)/cenerated from tBI tza.2a\ 174.79

C: CASE FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITTES:
Payment of lease liabilities
Buy-Back of Equity Sharcs

Finance cost paid

(287.24)
(2,286.63)

(134.63)

(2sl.46)

(t62.94)

Nf,T CEANGES TN CASE & CASH EQUIVALENT (AtB+C)
Cash aod calh equivaleots at the begiodng ofthe year

Cash and crsh cquivrlcnts rt the end of the ycar

Chartercd Accountuts
Firm Regn. No

Singh
PsrtDer
MembeEhip No.:407549

Place: New Delhi
Date: loth May 2025

4.88

2,618.30

t,'125.82

892.48

2,623,18 2.618.30

Crsh rod c8!h cquivrlcla ircludct:
(s) Bchtrccr with brols
- In curent ac@unts

(b) Cash otr hstrd
(c) Bsnk dcpoiitr with origioal osturity of up to thrcc months

2,623.t8

2,623.18

Note: I The above cash flow statEment has beea prepared under the indiet methd ar Ft out io IND AS - 7 'Statemeot of Cash Flows'.

Mrtcrirl rccounthS policiB I
Se rccoEprtryitrg troto for .tr itrtcgml prrt ofthetc cotrtolidrtcd fulscid ilrteEctrt!

A! pcr our report of even drtc rtt{chcd.

For end on bchslf of
G.M. Kapedir & Co.

1,3 18.30

2.6r8.30

For and on behelf of the Board of Directors
Applied Reseilch Intemational Private Limited

Saujay Kumar
Dirrctor

DIN No: 10977894DIN No: 00056050

Place: New Delhi
Date: loth May 2025
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Applied Resesrch International Private Limited
CIN: U73l00DLl998PTC0972E0
Consolidated Ststement of Changes in Equity for the year ended Msrch 31, 2025

(Amounts ore in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital No ofshares Amount

As at April 1, 2023

Changes in equity shues capital during lhe yeu
As at March 31,2024
Changes il equig shares capital during the yeu
- Due to Buyback of equity shares

15,30,000 t53.00

15,30,000 153.00

(2,01,340) (20.13)

13.28,660 132.87As at N{arch 31. 2025

Particulars

Reserues and Surplus Other comprehensive income

Non -Contolling
Interests

Total
Retained
earnings

Cspital
redemption

resene

General
Reserue

Exchange

dilferences on
translating the

financisl
statements of

foreign operations

Remeasurement
of defined benelit

plans

Balance as at April L,2023

Addition during tbe year:

Add(I-ess): ProfiV(Loss) for the year

Add(Less): Remeasurement Gain{Loss) for the year

Add/Q*ss): Transfer from retained earnings

Add/fl*ss): Exchange Gain/fl,oss) for the year

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Addition during the year:

Add(Less): Profit(Loss) for the year

Add(Less): Remeasurement Gain(loss) for the year

Less: Buyback ofEquity Shares (Including Transaction Cost and

Tax thereon)

Add/Q-ess): Transfeffed to Capital Redemption Reserve

Add(l*ss): Exchange Gain(toss) for the year

Balance os rt Morch 31,2025

Place: New Delhi
Date: l0th May 2025

6.049.4? - 443,69 - (1 il.65| - 6.381.51

56t.20 561.20
( 10.6 r)( r 0.61)

(3.67) (3.67)

6-610.67 44t.69 ( trz 26\ 6.928.41

1,969.86

(2,266.49\

(20.13) 20. l3

(e4.4s)
r,969.86

(94.4s)

(2,266.4e)

(20.86)(20.86)

6-291.91 20.13 443.69 ().16 1fi\ 6.\t6.49

Material accounting policies I
See accomponying notes form an integrsl port ofthesc consolidated financiol statemetrts

As per our report of even date sttoched,

For and on behalf of
G.l\{. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Fim Regn. No.

Abhishek Singh
Partner
Membership No.: 407549 DN No: 00056050

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors

fuplied Research International Private Limited

Sanjay Kumar
Director

DIN No: 10977894

Place: New Delhi
Date: lOth May 2025
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The Consolidoted Finonciol Stotemenrs (CFS)comprise finonciol stotefilenh of Applied Reseordr lnternolionol Privole

Limited (hereinofter referred to os "lhe Holding Compony") ond its subsidiories (lhe Holding Compony ond its

subsidiories together referred to os '\he Group") ond its ioint venture for the yeor ended Morch 3l , 2025.

The Holding compony is o Privote Limited compony domiciled in lndio ond incorporoted under lhe provisions of

the componies Act opplicoble in lndio, hoving corporote office ot 46/l 3, E-Block, Okhlo lnduslriolAreo, Phose'

ll, New Delhi, lndiq. these cFS includes finonciol informotion of following subsidiories ond o Joint venture:

Applied Reseorch lnlernolionol Privote Limited

CIN! U73 I OODLI 998PTC097280
Notes to lhe Consolidoted Finonciql Stotements

For the Yeot ended Mqrch 31, 2025
(All Amounts ore in INR Lokhs, unless otherwire sloled)

BACKGROUND AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

Proportion of ownershiP
of interest

lnvestment in equity instruments of subsidiaries:
p Iied U SA I U s 100.00%

Ap l,ed Reseorch lnternotionol (UK) ttd, UK 100.00%

ARI(Ap lied Reseorch lnternotionol) Ple. l-td. 100.00%

lnvestment in equi instruments of Joint Venture:

KIC SOLUTIONS CO., l"TD, South Koreo s0.00%

I. MATERIAI. ACCOUNTING POI.ICIES

The Group is Principolly engoged in the business of Advonced simulotion Technology, developmed ond

monufocture of simulotors ond Simulotion softwore, Digitol soos, lnformotion Technology solutions ond

incidentol ond ollied suppori services. The Group's soflwore oclivilies include designing developing,

monufoduring ond morketing simulotion ond digifol SooS products ocross o \,,/ide ronge of industry verlicols

to clrstomers ocroSS fh",ro.ld. The Group UseS itt own 3D virlrrol reolily ond simulolion softwore ploform lo

provide stondord ond customized solutions in lhe oreqs of Morine, offshore, Energy. conslruction, Airport ond

befence. The Group is olso providing speciolized rroining ond reloled services thol ore primorily conduded

using high end simulotors. The Group corers to both domeslic ond internolionol morkets ond hos wide globol

,".o-gnition of irs brond nome of "ARl Simr.rlotion", os o leoding globol operolor. Ile Group's morine ond

offsh-ore simulotion product portfolio is duly certified by DNV, on lnternotionol certifi€otion Agency in the

cqtegory of the hig;e$ Closs os 
nA Level". The Group hos developed ond introduced q suite of Digilol SoqS

solulions Ior froining, ossessmenf, ce ificolion qnd compliqnce'

The consolidoted finonciol stolements for the yeor ended Morch 31, 2025, were opproved by fie Boord oI

Direclors ond ouihorised for issue on Moy I O, 2025.

A. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTAIION

These consolidoted finonciol stotements of the Group hove been prepored in occordonce with lndion

Accounting Slondords (lnd AS) os prescribed under Section 133 of Componies Act, 2013, (the'Ac'') reod wirh

componies (lndion Accounting stondords) Rules, 2Ol5 (os omended from iime lo iime) ond presenlolion

requirements of Divislon ll of Schedule lll to the Componies Act, 2013, os opplicoble to fie CFS ond oiher relevont

provisions of the Acl.

For oll periods up to ond including the yeor ended 3l st Morch, 2024, the Group prepored its consolidoted

Finonciol stofements in occordonce with Accounting Principles generolly occepled in lndio including

Accounting Stondords notified under Section 133 of lhe Act reod with porogroph 7 of the Componies

(Accountsi Rules, 20 I 4, os omended (lndion GAAP). The Group hos odopted lnd AS ond the odoption wos

corried out in occordonce with lnd AS lOl (Firsr fime odoplion of lndion Accounting Stondords)' The

(,
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B.

tronsition wos corried out from April l, 2023 ond the finonciol stotements for the yeor ended Morch 3l'

2025 orethe first finonciol srotements the Group hos prepored in occordonce with lnd AS' Reconciliotions

onddescriptionsoftheeffectofthetronsitionhosbeensummorisedinNoteno.43.

These consolidoted finonciol stotements hove been prepored on o going concern bosis. The tronsition to lnd

AS hos resulted in .t,ong;, in th" pr"s.ntotion of tire iinonciol Stotements, disclosures in the notes therelo

ond occounting policies ond principles'

Principle of Consolidotion ond procedure

The Group controls on investee if ond only if the Group hos:

l.t.l. powerovertheinvestee(i.e.,existingrightstholgiveitthecurrentobilitytodirecttherelevontocliviliesof

the investee);

l.l .2. Exposure, or rights, to vorioble retums from its involvement wilh the investee; ond

1.1.3. The obility to use its power over the investee to offed itsreturns'

Generolly, there is o presumption lhot o moiority of voting righB result in control' To support this presumption

ond when the Group hos less thon o moiority of the votin! oisimilor rights of on investee, the Gro'rp considers oll

relevont f octs ond circumstonces in ossessing wherher it hos power over on investee, including:

a}Thecontroctuolorrongementwihtheolhervoteholdersoflheinvesteei

b) Rights orising from other controduol orrongementsi

c) The Group's voting rights ond potentiol voting rights;

d) The size of the group's holding of voting rights relotive to the size ond dispersion of the holdings of

the other voting rights holders'

The Group re-ossesses whether or not it controls on investee if focts ond circumstonces indicote thol there

ore chonges to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidorion of o subsidiory begins when the

Group obtoins control over the subsidiory ond ceoses when the Group loses control of the subsidiory' Assets'

liobilh'res, income ond expenses of o subsidiory ocquired or disposed of during the yeor ore included in the

consolidoted finonciol stotements from the dote ttre Group goins control unlil the dote the Group ceoses lo control

the subsidiorY.

consolidoted finonciol stqtements ore prepored using uniform occounting policies for like tronsoctions ond

other events in similor circumstonces. lf o membeiof the Group uses occounling policies other thon those

odopted in the consolidoted finonciol stotements for like lronsoctions ond events in similor circtrrmtqnces'

oppropriote odiustrnenh ore mode to thot Group member's finonciol stolements in preporing the consolidoted

finonciolSlotemen'stoensureconformitywiththeGroup'soccountingpolicies.

The finonciolstotements of oll entities used for the purpose of consolidotion ore drown up to sorne reporting dote

os thot of the porent compony, i.e,, yeor ended on Morch 3l ' When the end of the reporting period of the

porent is different from thot oi o subsidiory, the subsidiory prepores, for consolidotion purposes odditionol

finonciol informotion os of the some dote os the finonciol slotements of the porent to enoble the porent to

consolidote the finonciol informotion of the subsidiory, unless it is improcticoble to do so'

a) combine like items of ossets, liobilities, equily, income, expenses ond cosh flows of the porent with those of

its subsidiorier. fo, t.i, prrpose, income'onJ .tp"ni., of the subsidiory ore bosed on the omounts of the

ossets ond liobilities recognised in the consolidoted finonciol stotements ot the ocquisition dote'

b) offset (eliminote) the corrying omounl of the holding compony's investmenl in eoch subsidiory ond the

holding Compony's portioi oiequity of eoch subsidiory. Business combinotions policy exploins how to

occount for onY reloted goodwill'

c) Eliminote in full introgroup ossets ond liobilities, equity, income, expenses ond cosh flows reloting to



Applied Reseorch lnternotionql P.ivole Limiled
CIN: UZ3 | OoDtl998PTCO97280
Nole: lo lhe Consolidoted Finqncicl Stqlements
For lhe Yeqr ended Morch 31, 2O25
(All Amountr ore in INR I'okhs, unless otherwiie stoted)

tronsoctions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from introgroup lronsoclions thqt ore

recognised in ossets, such os inventory ond fixed osseis, ore eliminoled in full). lntrogroup losses moy indicole

on impoirmenl thot requires recognition in the consolidoted finonciql stotemenls. lnd AS l2 lncome Toxes

opplies to iemporqry differences thot orise from the eliminotion of prolits ond losses resul ng from introgroup

tronSoclions.

Profit or loss ond eoch component of other comprehensive income (OCl) ore ottributed to the equily holders of

the Holding Compony of the Group ond to the non-controlling inferesls, even if lhis reqJlts in the non-controlling

inte.ests hoving o deficit bolonce, When necessory, odiustments ore mode lo the finonciol stolenlents of subsidiories

to bring fieir qccounting policies inlo line with the Group's occounting policies. All ir$ro-group ossets ond liobilities,

equity, income? expenses ond cosh flows reloling lo tronsoctions beiween members of the Group ore eliminoled in full on

consolidotion.

A dronge in the ownerstrip interest of o zubsidiory, without o loss of cor*rol, is occounted for os on equily tronsoction.

lf the Group loses conlrolover o subsidiqry, il:

a) Derecognires the ossets (induding goodwill) qnd liobilfties of lhe subsidiory ol their corrying omounls ot

the dole when control is losl;

b) Derecognises rhe corrying omoud of ony norFcontrolling interestti

c) Derecogniles lhe cumuloiive tronslolion differences recorded in equity;

d) Rgcognises fie foir vqlue of the considerolion received;

e) Recogniset the foir volue of ony investmerf retoined;

f) Recognises ony surplus or delicil in Profit or loss;

g) Recognise rhol disrribution of shores of subtidiory b Group in Group's copocily qs owne6;

h) Reclosrifies the holding Compony's shore of components previously recognised in OClto profft or loss

or lronsferred diredly to retoined eomings, if required by other lnd ASs os would be required if fie
Group hod diredly disposed of the reloted os5ets or liobilities.

C. Functionsl qnd presenlolion cunency

These consolidoted Finonciol sloternents ore presenled in lndion Rupees {lNR), which is olso the Holding

Compony's functionol currency. All finonciol informotion presenled in lndion rupees hove been rounded'off lo two

decimol ploces lo lhe neorest Lokhs unless otherwise sloted'

o. I\4eosuremenl of foir volues

Foir volue is the price thot would be received to sell on osset or pqid totronsfer o liobility in qn orderly lronsocfion

between morkel porticiponts ol the meosurement dote.

Ihe foir vqlue meosurement ir bqsed on the presumption thot the lronsoclion lo selllhe osset or tronsferthe liobilily

tokes ploce either:
. ln the principol morkel for the o55etor liobility; or

. ln the obsence of o principol mqrket, in the mo* odvonlqgeous morkel fo. the ossetor liobility'

The principol or the mos| odvontogeous morkel must be qccessible by the Group'

I}re foir volue of qn osset or o liobilty is meosured using lhe qssumptions lhql mo*el PqniciPonts would use when

pricing the o5set or liobility, ossuming thol mqrket porliciponts oclin lheir economic bestinterest

A foir volue meosuremed of o non-finonciol qssel tokes inlo occount o morke, porticipont's qbility to generote

economic benefits by using fie osset in ils highest ond best use or by selling it lo qnother mqfket porticipod fiol
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would use the osset in its highest ond besl use.

Ihe Group uses voluotion techniques flrot ore oppropriote in the circumstonces ond for which sufficient doto is ovoiloble

to meosure foir volue, moximizing the use of relevont observoble inputs ond minimizing lhe use of unobservoble

inputs"
tn oddition, for finonciol reporting purposes, foir volue meosurements ore cstegorised into Level l, 2, or 3

bosed on the degree to which the inputs to the foir volue meosuremenls ore observoble ond the significonce

of the inputs to the foir volue meosurement in its entirety, which ore described os follows:

o Level l: quoted prices (unodiusted) in octive morkets for identicol ossets or liobilities thot the entity con

occess ot the meosurement dote;

r Level 2: inprns other thon quoted prices included in Level I thot ore observoble for the qsset or liobility, either

directly (i.e. os prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

r Level 3: inputs for the osset or liobility thot ore not bosed on observoble morket doto (unobservoble inputs).

When meosuring the foir volue of on osset or o liobility, the Group uses observoble morket doto os for os

possible. lf the inputs used to meosure the foir volue of on osset or o liobility foll into different levels of the foir

volue hierorchy, then the foir volue meosurement is cotegorised in its entirety in the some level of the foir volue

hierorchy os the lowest level input thot is significont to the entire meosurement.

Ihe Group recognizes tronsfers between levels of the foir volue hierorchy ot the end of the reporting period

during which the chonge hos occurred.

D. Business combinolions ond goodwill

Business combinqtions ore occounted for using the ocquisition method. The cost of on ocquisition is meosured os

the oggregote of the considerotion tronsferred meosured ot ocquisition dote foir volue ond the omount of ony

non-controlling interests in the ocquiree. For eoch business combinotion, the Group elects whether to meosure the

non-controlling interests in the ocquiree ot foir volue or ot the proportionote shore of the ocquiree's identifioble

net ossets. Acquisition-reloled costs ore expensed os incurred'

The Group determines thot it hos ocquired o business when the ocquired set of octivities ond ossets include on

input ond o substontive process thot together significontly contribute to the obility to creote outputs' The ocquired

pio."r, is considered substontive if it is criticol to the obility ro continue producing outputs, ond the inputs ocquired

include on orgonised workforce with the necessory skills, knowledge, or experience to perform thot process or it

significontly .ontribrt", to the obility lo continue producing outputs ond is considered unique or scorce or connot be

reploced without significont cost, effort, or deloy in the obility to continue producing outputs.

At the ocquisition dote, the identifioble ossets ocquired, ond lhe liobilities ossumed ore recognised ot their ocquisition

dote foir vqlues. For this purpose, the liobilities ossumed include conlingent liobilities represenling presenl obligotion ond

they ore meosured ot their ocquisition f oir volues irrespective ol the foct thot outf low of resources embodying economic

benefits is not proboble. However, the following ossets ond liqbilities ocquired in o business combinotion ore meosured

or the bosis indicoted below:

o. Deferred tox ossets or liobilities, ond the liobilities or ossets reloted to employee benefit orrongemenls

ore recognised ond meosured in occordonce with lnd AS 12 lnconre Tox ond lnd AS I9 Employee

Benef its respectivelY.

b. potentiol tox effects of temporory differences ond corry forwords of on ocquiree thot exisl ot the

ocquisition dote or orise os o result of the ocquisition ore occounted in qccordonce with lnd AS I 2.

c. Liobilities or equity instruments retoted to shore bosed poyment orrongements of the ocquiree or

shore-bosed poyments orrongements of the Group entered into to reploce shore-bosed poyment

orrongernents of the ocquiree ore meosured in occordonce with lnd AS 102 Shore-bosed Poyments
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qlfte ocquisition dqfe.

d. Assets (or disposol groups)thot ore clos:ified os held for sole in occordonce with lnd AS 'lO5 Non-

crrrrent Assets Held for Sole ond Discontinued Operotions ore neosured in occordonce with lhot

Stondord.

e. Reocquired rights ore meosured ot o volue determined on the bqsis of the remoining conltoduollerm

of the relqted controct Sudt vqluotiqn does not conside. potenliol renewol of the reocquired right.

when the Group ocquires o business, il ossesses the finonciql ossets ond liobililies ossumed for oppropriote

dossificqrion onj designqtion in ocrordonce with lhe conlrqclrrol terms, e@nomic circumsiqnces ond pertinenl condilions

os ol the ocquisilion dote.

lf the business combinotion is ochieved in stoges, ony previously held equif, inlerest is re-meosured qi its o(quisition dole

foir volue ond ony resuhing goin or loss ir recognised in profit or loss or OCl, os oppropriote'

Any contingent considerotion lo be lronsferred by the ocquirer is recognised ol foir volue ol lhe ocquisition dote.

Contingeni considerotion clossified os on orset or liobiliiy ihot is o finonciol inslrumenl ond within the scope of

lnd AS I 09 Finonciol lnstrurnenfs, is meosured ol foir volue with chonges in foir volue recognised in profit or loss in

qccordqnce with lnd AS 109, lf the contingenl considerotion it nol wi$in lhe scope of lnd AS 109, il is rneosured in

occordoncewiihfieoppropriotelndASondshollberecognisedinprofitorloss.Contingentconsiderolioniholis
clossified os equity i5 not re-meosured ot subsequent reporfing doies ond subsequenlils settlenEnl is occounted for

within equily.

Goodwill is initiolly meosured ot cost, being the excess of lhe oggregqle of the considerolion trqnsferred ond

the omount recognised for non-controlling inlerests, ond ony paeYious interesl held, over the net identifioble ossets

ocquired ond ltbilities ossumed, lf the foir volue of the net osseh ocquired is in excess of lhe qggregqte

considerqtion trqnsferred, the Group re-ossesses whether it hos correctly idedified oll of lhe ossels ocquired ond

qll of lhe liobilities ossumed ond reviews the procedures used lo meosure the omounls to be recognised or fie

ocquisition dote. lf the reossessment still results in on excess of the foir volue of nel osselt ocquired over lhe

og;;;lot. 
""n,ia"r"fion 

rronsferred, then rhe goin ir recognised in OCI ond occumuloled in equity os copitol

re-s!."ei Ho*e"er, if rhere is no deor evidence of borgoin purchose, fie entity recogniset fie goin directly in equily os

copilol reserve, withoul routing lhe tomefirough OCl.

After initiol recognition, goodwil! is meqsured ot cost less ony occumuloled impoirment lottes. For the purpose

of impoirment le;fing, goodwill ocquired in o business combinolion is, from the ocquisilion dote, qllocoted to

eqch of the Group's cosh-generoting units thot ore expected lo benefit from the combinotion, irresPeclive of

whether other ossets or liobilities of fie ocquiree ore ossigned to those unils'

A cosh generoting unit to which goodwill hos been ollocoted il lested for impoirment onnuolly, or more

fruqu.ntiy *hen tie.e ir on indicotion thot the unit moy be impoired. lf the recoveroble omou of lhe cosh

generoring unit is less thon its corryiflg omounl, lhe impoirmenl loss is ollocoted firsl to reduce the corrying

imounr of-ony goodwill ollocoted io the unit ond then to the other ossets of the unit pro roto bqsed on the

corrying omount-of eoch osset in fie unit. Any impoirment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss An

impoirment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods'

Where goodwill hos been ollocoled to o cosh'generqting unil ond port of the operotion within thot unil is

disposej of, the goodwill ossocioted with the disposed operotion is included in the corrying omount of lhe

operotion when determining the goin or loss on disposol, Goodwill disposed in rhese circumslonces is meosured

bosed on the relqtive volues of the disposed operoiion ond the Portion of lhe cosh-generoting unit retoined.
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lf fie initiol qccounting for o business combinolion i5 incomPlete by the end of rhe reporling period in which fie

combinotion occl.,rs, the Group reports provisionol omounts for lhe ilems fof which the occounling is incomplete.

Those provisionol omounts ore odlusted through goodwill duling the meosurement period, or odditionol qssets

or liobilities ore recognised,lo reflecl new informofion oblqined obod focls ond circumstonce! thot existed ot

the ocquisition dote thot, if known, would hove offecled the omounls recognized ot lhot dole. These odiustments

o.. aoilad os meosurement period odiustme s. The meosurement period does nol exceed one yeor from lhe

ocquisilion dote.

lnveslmenl in o!sociotes ond ioinl ventures

An qrrociqle is on entity over which the Group hos significqnt influence. significqnl influence is lhe power lo

porticipote in fte finonciol ond operoting policy decisions of the investee but is not conlrol or ioint conrol over

those policies'

A ioinl venlure is o type of ioint orrongement whereby lhe porlies thol hove ioinl control of the orrongemenl

hove rights to the net osseh of the ioinl venlure, Joint control is lhe controctuolly ogreed shoring of controlof

on orro-ngement, which exisls only when decisions qbout the relevont octivilies require unonimous conse of the

po ies shoring conlrol.

Ihe considerotions mqde in determining whether significont influence or ioint conirol ore similor lo those

necessory to delermine control over the subsidiories'

The Group,s investments in its ossociote qnd ioint venlure ore occounled for Using the equily mefhod. Under lhe

equity method, the investment in on ossociote or o ioint venture is initiolly recognised ol co!t' The corrying

o.ount of the inresrment is odiusted to recognise chonges in the Group's shore of net osset of the ossociote

or loint venture since the ocquisition dote. Goodwill relofing lo the ossociote or ioint venture is included in lhe

corrying omount of the investme ond is not tested for impoirment indiYiduolly. Thus, reveGols of impoirments

moy'efiectively include reversol of goodwill impoirments, lmpoirments ond reversols ore presenled within

'Shore of profit of on ossocioie qnd o ioint venlure' in the stoleme of profit or loss'

Ihe stotement of profit qnd loss reflects the Group's shore of the results of operotions of the ossociqte orioint

venture. Any chonge in OCI of those investees is presented os port of the Group's OCI' ln oddilion' when lhere

hos been o chong! recognised directly in the equity of the ossociole or ioint venture, the Group recognises ils

shore ol ony 
"hong.r,,rh.n 

opplicoble, in the stolement of chonges in equity' Unreolised goins ond losses

.esrlting from t.onsoctions belween lhe Group Ond the Ossociote or ioinl venlure ore eliminoled to lhe extent

of the interesf in the ossociote or ioint venture.

lf qn entity's shore of loSSes of On ossociqle or q ioint venture equOl or exceeds its lnleresl in lhe Ossociote or

ioint venture (which includes ony long term interest fiof, in substonce, form Port of fie GrouP's nel inveslment

in the ossociote or ioint venture), the entity discontinues recognising ih shore of furlher losses. Additional losses

ore recognised oniy to rhe extent thot the Group hos inqrrred legol or constructive obligqtions or mode

poyment; on beholf of the qssociote or ioint venture. lf the ossociote-or ioint venlure subsequenlly reporls

profits, the entily resumes recognising its shore of those profits only ofler i'9 shore of the profits equols the

shqre of losses not recognised.

TheoggregoteoftheGroup'sshoreofproftorlossofonossocioteondoioinlvenlureisshownonlhefoce
of the stolement of profit ond loss.

Ihe finonciol stqtements of the ossociote or ioinl venture ore prepored for lhe some reporting period os the

Group. When necessory, odiustments ore mode lo bring the occounting policies in line with lhose of the Group'

o
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After opplicqtion of the equity melhod, the Group determines whefier it i5 necessqry to recognise on

impoirment loss on it: investment in its ossociole or ioint venture' At eoch rePorling doie' the Group determines
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wherher there is obiective evidence thot the investment in the ossociote or ioint venture is impoired. lf there is

such evidence, the Group colculotes the omounl of impoirment os the difference between the recoveroble

omount of the ossociqte or ioint venture ond its corrying volue, ond then recognises the loss os 'Shore of profit

of on ossociote ond o ioint venture' in the stotement of profil qnd loss'

Upon loss of significont influence over the ossociote or ioint control over the ioint venlure, the Group meosures

ond recognises ony reloined investment ot its foir volue. Any difference between the corrying omount of the

ossociote or ioint venture upon loss of significont influence or ioint control ond the foir volue of the retoined

investmenl ond proceeds from disposol is recognised in profit or loss'

E. Revenue fiom conhocls wilh cuslomets

Revenue from controcts with customers is recognized, when the Group solisfies o performonce obligotion by

tronsferring o promised good or service to ifs cuslomers ot on omounl thot reflects the considerotion lo which

the group expects to be entitled upon sotisfying those performonce obligotions.

Revenue from sole of Producls

Revenue from sole of products is recognised ot the point in time when control of the product is tronsferred to the

clrslomer, generolly on delivery of the product. The group considers whether there ore olher promises in the controct

thot ore ,"porot performonce obligotions to which o portion of the trqnsoction price needs lo be ollocoted' ln

determining lhe tronsoction price for the sole of product, the group considers the effects of vorioble considerotion,

the existence of significont finoncing components, non-cosh considerotion ond considerotion poyoble to the customer

(if ony).

lf the considerotion in o controct includes o vorioble omounl, the group estimotes the omount of considerotion to which

it will be entitled in exchonge for tronsferring the products to customer. The vorioble considerotion is estimoted ot

controcl inception ond constroined until it is highly proboble thot o significont revenue reversol in the omount of

cumulotive revenue recognised will not occur when the ossociote's uncertointy with the vorioble considerotionis

subsequently resolved.

Revenue from rendering of services

Group provides Annuol Mointenonce Controct (AMC) services lhot ore either sold seporotely or bundled together

with the sole of product to o customer. The AMC services do not significontly customise or modify the product'

Controcts for bundled sole of products ond AMC services ore comprised of two performonce obligotions

becouse the equipment ond AMC iervices ore both sold on o stondolone bosis ond ore distinct within the context of

the controct. Accordingly, the group ollocotes the tronsoction price bosed on lhe relotive stondolone selling prices

of the products ond AMC services.

Ihe group recognises the revenue from rendering AMC services over time becouse the customer simultoneously

,.a"i"., ond consumes the benefits provided to them. The group uses on output melhod in meosuring progress

of the AMC services becouse there is o direct relotionship between the tronsfer of service to the orstomer ond the

time elopsed in lhe controct term.

Fees from short durotion troining courses is recognised upon completion of the respective course tenure'

Recognilion of Olher income

i) lnterest income

lnterest lncome moinly comprises of interest on Morgin money deposit reloting to bonk guorontee, Deposits

,t
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ii)Export incentives

The group receives export incentives which do not foll under the scope of lnd AS I I 5 ond ore occounted for in

occordonce with the provisions of lnd AS 20 considering such incentives os Government Assistonce. Accordingly,

government gront reloting to lncome is recognised on occruol bosis when the relevont expense hos been

chorged to stotement of Profit ond Loss.

Conlrocl Bolonces:

ln o controct, if fhe entity performs by tronsferring goods or services lo o customer before the custonrer poys

considerotion or before poynrent is due, it sholl be presented os o controct osset, excluding ony ornounts presented

os receivoble. A controct osset is on entity's right to considerotion in exchonge for goods ond services thot the entity

hos tronsferred to the coslomer.

ogoinst Bonk Overdroft with bonks ond other fixed deposits. lnterest income should be recorded using the

effective interesf rore (ElR). However, lhe omount of morgin money deposits reloting to bonk guoronlee ond

Over droft ore purely current in noture, hence effective interest rote hos not been opplied. lnterest is

recognized using the time- proportion method, bosed on rotes implicit in the tronsoctions.

Conlrocl qssel:

The controct ossets primorily relote to the Compony's rights to considerolion for performonce obligotion

sotisfied but not billed ot the reporting dote. The controct ossets ore tronsferred to receivobles when the rights

become unconditionol.

Conlrocl Liobility:

lf o qrstomer poys considerotion, or on entity hos o right to on ornount of considerotion thot is unconditionol (i.e., o

receivoble), before the entily tronsfers o good or service lo the customer, it sholl be presented os q controct

liobility when the poymenr is mode or the poyment is due (whichever is eorlier). Conlroct liobilities ore

,ecognised os revenue when the group performs the conlroct (i.e., tronsfers control of the reloted goods or

services to the customer).

Trode Receivobles:

A receivoble is recognised if on omount of considerotion thot is unconditionol (i.e., only the possoge of time is

required before poyment of the considerotion is due). Refer to occounling policies of finonciol ossets in Note I below'

F. Borrowing cosl

Borrowing costs ore interest ond other costs incurred in connection wittr the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs

directly ottributoble to ocquisition, construction or production of on ossef which necessorily roke o substontiol period of

time to get reody for their intended use or sole ore copilolised os port of the cost of lhot osset Other borrowing costs

ore recognised os on expense in the period in which they ore incurred'

G. Foreign currency lrqnsqclions ond lronslotion

Tronsoctions in foreign currencies ore initiolly recorded by the Group's entities ot their respective functionol currency

spot rotes ot the dote the tronsoction first quolifies for recognition. However, for procticol reosons, the Group uses

overoge rote if the overoge opproximotes the octuol rote otthe dote of the tronsoction.

lrAonetory ossets ond liobilities denominoted in foreign orrrencies ore trqnsloted ot the functionol clrrency spol rotes of

exchonge ot the rePorting dote.

Exchonge differences orising on settlement or lronstotion of monetory items ore recognised in profit or loss with the

exception of the following:

o. Exchonge differences orising on monetory items thot forms port of o reporting entity's net investmenl
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in o foreign operotion dre recognised in profir or loss in the seporote finonciol stoternents of lhe

reporting ;ntity or the individuol finqnciol stotemenls of the foreign operotion, os oppropriote. ln lhe

finqnciol stotemeflts fiot include the foreign operolion ond fie repoding entily (e,g., consolidoted

finonciol slqtements when the foreign operolion is o subsidiory), such exdronge differences ore

recognised initiolly in OCl, Ihese exdronge differences ore reclossified from equily to prof or loss on

disPosol of lhe nel inveslmenl.

b. Exchonge differences orising on monetory items thot ore designoted os port of the hedge of rhe

Group's net investmem of o foreign operolion. Ihese qre recognised in OCI until ihe nel investment

is disposed of, ot which lime, lhe cumulotive qmount is reclossified to profit or loss'

c. Tqx chorges qnd credits ottributoble to exchonge differences on lhose monetory ilems ore qlso

recorded in OCl.

Non-monelory iienE fiot qre nEqtured in terms of historicol cost in o foreign currency ore lronsloted using the exdlonge

rotes ot fie dotes of the iniliol lrontoclions. Non-monetory items meosured ot foir volue in o foreign currency ore

tronslqled using fie exdronge rotes ot the dqte when the foir volue is delermined. The goin or lo55 orhing on tronslolion

of non-monetor] items meosured ot foir volue is treofed in line wilh lhe recognition of lhe goin or loss on the dlonge in

foir volue of the item (i.e., tronslotion differences on items whose foir volue goin or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or

loss ore olso recognised in OClor profitor los5, respectively)'

ln determining fie spot exchonge rote lo use on iniliol recognilion of the reloted ossel, expense or income (or port of

it) on the derecognition of o non-monetory osset o. non-monetory liobility leloting to odvqnce considerolion,

the dote of the iron5oction is the dote on whidt the Group iniliolly re{ognises lhe non-monelory ossel or non-monelory

liobiliry orising from the odvonce considerqfion. lf there ore mulfiple poyments or receipis in odvonce, the Group

determines lhe tronsqction dote lor eoch poyment or receipt o{ odvonce considerolion'

Group Componies

On consolidotion, rhe ossets ond liobilities of foreign operotions ore lronsloled into INR ol the roie of exchonge

prevoiling ot theieporting dote ond lheir stolements of profil ond loss orelronsloted ol exchonge roles prevoiling ol the

dotes of ire tronsoclions.lor procticol reosons, the group uses on overoge rote lo tronslote incone ond expense

items, if ttre qveroge rote qpproximotes lhe exchonge rotes ot lhe dotes of the tronsoclions. The exchonge

differences orising on rronstotion for consolidotion ore recognised in OCL On di:posol of o foreign operotion, the

component of OCI relqting lo fiol porticulor foreign operotion is recognised in profit ond loss'

Any goodwill orising in fie qcquisitron/busirEss combinotion of o foreign operqtion qnd ony foir volue odiushenh to

#Jrrying o.orni, of osseti ond liqbililies orising on the ocquisilion ore treoted os ossets ond liobililies of the

foreign operotion qnd lronsloled otthespot role of exchonge otthe rePorting dote'

Any goodwill or foir volue odiustments orising in business combinolions/ocquisitions, which occurred beforethe

doie-of tronsition to lnd AS (April I , 20 I 5), ore treoted os osseh ond liobilities of lhe entity rother lhon os ossels

qnd liobilities of the foreign operotion. Therefore, those ossets ond liobilities ore non'monelory items olreody

expressed in the fundionol otrrency of the porentqnd no fudher ironslqtion differences occur.

Goin or loss on q subsequent disposol of ony {oreign operotion excludes tronslotion differences fiot orose

before the dote of tronsition but includes only tronslotion differences orising ofter lhe trqnsilion dqte.

H. Currenlond non<urrenlclqssificqlion

The Schedule tllfo the Act requires orsets ond liobilities to be clo5sified os eilher currenl or non-oJrrent. The Group

presents qssets ond liobilities in the bolonce sheet bosed on current/ non-current clossificotion,
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Assels

An osset is clossified os o current whenr

- it is expecled to be reolised in, or is intended for sole or consumption in normoloperoting cycle;

- it is expected to be reolised within twelve months from the reporting dole;

- it is held primorily for the purposes of being troded; or

, it is cqsh or cosh equivolent unless it is restricted from being exchonged or used to settle o liobility for ot leost

twelve months ofter the reporting dote.

Allother ossets ore clossified os non<lrrrent

Liobililies

A liobility is clossified os o current when:

- it expects to settle the liobility in its normol operoting cycle;

- it is due to be settled within twelve monlhs from the reporling dote;

- h is held primorily for the purposes of being troded;

- there is no unconditionol right to defer settlement of liobility for otleost twelve months from the reporting

dote.

All other liobilities ore clqssified os non-clrrrent.

Deferred tox ossets/liobilities ore clossified os non-current.

Operoting Cycle

Operoting cycle is the time between the ocquisition of ossets for processing ond reolisotion in cosh or cosh equivolents'

The grouj hos oscertoined its operoting cycle os I 2 months for the purpose of current or non-current clossificotion

of ossets ond liobilities.

l. Finqnciol inslrumenls

A finonciol instrument is ony controct thot gives rise to o Finonciol Asset of one entity ond Finonciol Liobility or

equity instrumenl of onother entity.

Finonciol ossels

i) lnitiol Recognition ond meosurement

Finonciot ossels ore clossified, ot initiol recognition, os subsequently meosured ot omortised cost, foir volue

through other comprehensive income (OCl), ond foir volue through profit or loss.

The clossificotion of finonciol ossets ot initiol recognition depends on the finonciol osset's controctuolcosh flow

chorocteristics ond the group's business model for monoging them. With lhe excepfion of trode receivobles

thot do not contoin o significont finoncing component or for which the group hos opplied the procticol

expedient, fie group iniriolly meosures o finonciol ossel ot its foir vqlue plus, in the cose of o finonciol osset

noi ot foir volue through profit or loss, tronsoction costs, Trode receivobles thot do not contoin o significont

finoncing component or ior which the group hos opplied the procticol expedienf ore meosured ot the
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rrqnsoction price determined under lnd AS I '15. Refer to the occounting policies in Section {E) Revenue from

controcls with cuslomers.

ln order for o finonciol osset to be clossified ond meosured ot omortited cosl or foir volue lhrough OCl, it

needr to give rise to cosh flows rhot ore'solely poyments of principol o'd interest (SPPI)'on fie principol

omounl outstonding. This ossessment is relerred lo os rhe sPPl tesl ond is performed ol on insirume level.

Finonciol ossets wit-h cosh flows thot ore not SPPI ore clossified ond meosured qt foir vqlue through profil or

loss, irrespec-tive of lhe business model.

The group's business model for monoging finqnciol ossels refers to how it mqnoges it5 finonciql ossels in order

to gJnerote cosh flows. The business model determines whether cosh flows will result from collecting controduol

cosi flows, selling the finonciol ossets, or both, Finonciql ossets clossified qnd meosured ot omortrsed cost orc

held within o business model with rhe obiective lo hold finonciql ossels in order lo collect controctuol cosh flows

while finonciol ossets clossified ond meosured ot fqir volue through OCI ore held within o business modelwith

the obiective of bofi holding lo collect conlroctuol cosh flows ond selling'

ii) Clossif icotion ond subsequent meosuremenl

Allfinonciol ossets except Trode receivobles ore initiolly meosured ot foir volue plus, for on item nol otfoir volue through

profrt ond loss (FVTPI), ronsoclion cosh fiot ore directly oflributoble lo ils ocquitilion or issue'

Subsequenl meosuremenl: For purposes of subsequenl meosurement, finonciol ossets ore dossified in four

coiegorieJl

- Fnonciol ossets oi omorlised cost (debt inshumenh);

- Finonciol ossets ot foir volue firough other comprehensive incorne (FVTOCI) wittr recycling of cumulotive goins

ond losses (debt instruments);

- Finonciol ossets designoted ot foir volue through ocl wilh no recyding of q.rmulolive goim ond losses upon

derecognition (equity instruments);

- Finonciol olseh ot foir volue through profit or loss'

Finonciol osset! ore not reclossified subsequent to their initiol recognition, except if ond in the period lhe group

chonges ils business modelfor monoging finonciol ossets'

Finqnciolqssels ql qmortised cost (debl instruments)

A finonciol osset is meqsured ot omortised cost if meeh both of the following condiliont ond i! not designoted qs

or FVTPI;

- the q5set i5 held within o business model whose oblective is to hotd ossets to collecl conlroctuol cosh flows;

ond
- rhe controduol termr of the finonciol osset give rise on specilied dotes to cosh flows lhol ore solely

poyments of principqlqnd inleresl on the principol ornount oulttonding'

this cotegory is the mo$ relevont to lhe group. Afier initiol meosurement such finonciol ossets ore subsequently

.uorrrei oi q.ortir"d cost using fie effective interest rote (ElR) method. Amortised cost is coldrloted by toking

into oc@unt ony discount or Premium on ocquisition ond fees or cosh thot ore on inlegrol pqrt of the EIR' The EIR

omortirotion is included in finonce income in the profii or lo:s. The losses orising from impoirmenl qre.ecognised

in rhe profit or loss. The group's finonciol olsets ot omorlised cost includes trode Ieceivobles, depositt ond ofier

non-currenl ond current finonciol ossets.

Finonciql qssels ol fqir volue lhrough OCI (FWOCI) (debt instruments)

A'finonciol osset' is ctossified os qt the FVTOCI if bolh of rhe following criterio ore mel'
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. The obiective of the business model is ochieved both by collecting conlroctuol cosh flows ond selling

the finonciol ossets; ond

. The osset's controctuol cosh flows represenl Solely Poynrents of Principol ond lnterest (SPPI).

. Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI cotegory ore meosured initiolly os well os ot eoch

reporting dote ot foir volue. For debt instruments, ot foir volue through OCl, interest income, foreign

exchonge revoluotion ond impoirment losses or reversols ore recognised in the profit or loss ond

computed in the some monner os for finonciol ossels meosured ot omortised cost. The remoining foir

volue chonges ore recognised in OCl, Upon derecognition, the cumulotive foir volue chonges

recognised in OCI is reclossified from the equity to profil or loss'

There ore no group's debt instruments which ore stoted qt foir volue through ocl.

Finonciol ossels designoled ol foir volue through ocl (equity inslruments)

Upon initiol recognition, the group con elect to dossify irrevocobly its equity investments os equity inslruments

designoted ot foir volue through OCI when they meet tfie definition of equity under lnd AS 32 Finonciol lnstruments:

presentotion ond ore not held for troding. The clossificotion is determined on on instrunent-by- instrument bosis. Equity

instruments which ore held for troding ond contingent corsiderotion recognised by on ocquirer in o busircss

combinotion to which lnd ASI03 opplies ore clossified os ot FWPL'

Goins ond losses on these finonciol ossets ore never recycted to profit or loss. Dividends ore recognised os other

irrcome in the stotement of profit ond loss when the right of poyrnent hos been estoblished, except when the group

benefits from such proeeds os o recovery of port of the cost of the finonciol osset, in which cose, such goim ore

recorded in OCl. Equiry instruments designoted ol foir volue through OCI ore not subiect to impoirmenl crssessrnent'

The group hos eleaed not to clossify its investments in equity investments under lhis cotegory.

Finonciol ossets ol foir volue through profil or loss

Hnorrciol osseh ot foir volue through profit or loss ore corried in the bolone sheet ot foir volue wilh net chonges in

foir volrr recognised in the stolement of profir ond loss'

Ihis cotegory indudes derivotive instruments ond listed equity investments which the group hod not irrevocobly elected

to clossifi oi foiruolue through OCl. Dividends on lisred equity investments ore recognised in the stotement of profit

ond loss when the rigtrt of poyrnent hos been estoblistred'

Since rhe group does not hold ony derivotive ond listed equity investments, lhere ore no finonciol ossets dossified ot

foir volue through profit or loss.

Derecognilion

A Finonciol osset is primorily derecognised when the right to receive the controctuol cosh flows in o tronsoction

in which substontiolly oll oi the risks ond rewords of ownership of the finonciol osset ore tronsferred or in

which the group neither tronsfers nor retoins substontiolly oll of the risks ond rewords of ownership ond does

not retoin control of the finonciol osset.

lf the group enters into tronsoctions whereby it tronsfers ossets recognised on its bolonce sheet, but retoins

either;ll oi substonriolly oll of the risks ond rewords of the tronsferred ossets, the tronsferred ossets ore not

derecognised.

Finonciol Liobilities

i) lnitiol Recognition ond meosuremenl

Finorciol liobilities ore dossified, ot initiol recognition, os finonciol liobilities ot foir volue through profit or loss, loons

ond borrowings, poyobles, or os derivotives designoted os hedging instruments in on effective hedge, os oppropriote'
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All finonciol liobilities ore recognised initiolly ot foir volue ond, in the cose of loons ond borrowings ond poyobles, net

of directly ottribuloble tronsoction costs.

The group's finonciol liobilities irclude trode ond other poyobles, loons qnd borrowings including bonk overdrofts.

ii) Subsequent meosurement:

For purposes of subsequent meosurement, finonciol liobilities ore clossified in two cotegories:

- Finonciol liobilities ot foir volue through profit or loss;

Finonciol liobilities ot onrortised co$ (loons ond borrowings)'

Finonciol liobilities ut foir volue through profil or lors

Finonciol liobilities ot foir volue through profit or loss include finonciol liobilities held for troding ond finonciol liobilities

designoted upon initiol recognition os ot foir volue through profit or loss'

Finonciol liobilities ore clossified os held for troding if they ore incurred for the purpose of repurchosing in the neor

term. This cotegory olso includes derivotive finonciol instruments entered inro by rhe group thot ore nol designoted

os hedging instiuments in hedge relotionships os defined by lnd AS 109. Seporoted embedded derivotives ore

olso clossified os held for troding unless they ore designoted os effective hedging instruments'

Goins or losses on liobilities held for troding ore recognised in the profit or loss.

Finonciol liobilities designoted upon initiol recognition ot foir volue through profit or loss ore designoted os such

or the initiol dote of recognition, ond only if the criterio in lnd AS 109 ore sotisfied. For liobilities designoted os

iVipi, toi,. volue goins/llsses onributoble to chonges in own credit risk ore recognized in OCI' These goins/

losses ore not subsequently tronsferred to P&1, However, the group moy tronsfer lhe cumulotive goin or loss within

equity, All other chonges in foir volue of such liobility ore recognised in the stotement of profit ond loss' The group

hos not designoted ony finonciol liobility os ot foir volue through profit or loss.

Finonciol liobitities ol omorlised cosl (Loons ond borrowings)

This is the cotegory most relevont to the group. After initiol recognition, interest-beoring loons ond borrowings

ore subsequently meosured ot omortised cost using the EIR method. Goins ond losses qre recognised in profit or loss

when the liobilities ore derecognised os well os through the EIR omortisotion process'

Amortised cost is colculoted by toking into occount ony discount or premium on ocquisition ond fees or costs lhot

ore on integrol port of the ElR. The EIR omortisotion is included os finonce costs in the stolement of profit ond loss'

This cotegory generolly opplies to borrowings'

iii) Derecognition

A finonciol liobility is derecognised when the obligotion under the liobility is dischorged or concelled or expires.

When on existing finonciol liobilhy is reploced by onother from the some lender on subslontiolly different lerms,

or the terms of on existing liobiliiy ore substontiolly modified, such on exchonge or modificotion is treoted os

the derecognition of the originol liobility ond the recognition of o new liobility. The difference in the respective

corrying omounts is recognised in the slotement of profit ond loss'

iv) Offsetting

Finonciol ossets ond finonciol liobiliries ore offset ond the net omounl reported in the bolonce sheet if there is o

olrrently ond legolly enforceoble right to set off the omounrs ond it intends either to seille them on o nel bosis

or to reolise the osset ond settle the liobility simultoneously'

v) Redossificotion of finonciol lnstruments



Ihe Group determines ctsssificqtion of finonciol ossets ond liobililie5 on initiol recognition. After initiol recognition,

no reclossificqtion is mode for finonciol ossets which ore equity inslruments ond finonciol liobilities. For finonciql

qssets which ore debt instruments, o reclossificotion is mode only if ftere is o chonge in the business model for

monoging those ossets. lf the Group reclossifies finonciol ossets, it opplies the reclossificotion prospeclively.

J. Property, plont ond equiprhent

i) Recognition qnd meosuremenl

Property, plont ond equipment qre stoted ot historicol cost less occumuloled depreciotion ond occumuloled

impoirment loss, if ony. on tronsition to lnd AS, the Group hos elected lo meosure oll of its ploperty, Plont ond

equipmenl ot the previous GAAP corrying volue (deemed cost). Cost of on ilem of property, plont ond equipment

comprises its purdlose price, including import duties ond non-refundoble purchose loxes, ofier deducting rode
discounts ond rebotes, ony directly ottributoble co$ of bringing the item lo its working condition for ils intended

use ond estimoted costs (Present Volue) of dismontling ond removing the item ond restoring the site on which il
is locoled.

Subsequent costs qre included in the osset's corrying omount or recognised qs o sepqrote ossel, os oppropriolq

only when it is proboble thot future economic benefiB ossocioted with the item will flow lo the group ond fte cosl

of fie item con be meosured reliobly. Ihe corrying omounl of ony componenl qccounted fot os o seporote qsset

is derecognised when reploced, All other repqir' ond mointenonce ore chorged lo stotemenl of proft or loss

during the reporting period in which fiey ore incurred. lf on item of properl, plofi ond equipment is purchosed

wift deferred credit period from supplier, such ossel is recorded ot its cosh price equiYolent volue'

ii)Depreciotion

Depreciqtion is recognized in fie stotement of profit ond loss on wriffen down volue bosis overthe estimoied uselul

lives of property, plont ond equipment bosed on to the Componies Aa, 201 3 ("Schedule ll'), which prescribes the

useful lives for vorious closses of tongible ossets. However, exceplion lo fiis in cose of its wholly owned subsidiory

ARI US depreciotion is provided on the ossets on SIM bosis, For ossets ocquired or disposed off during rhe

yeqr, depreciolion is provided on pro roto bosis. Depreciobte omount for qssets is the co$ of on ossel less its

estimoted residuol vqlue except in cose of its wholly owned subsidiory where residuol volue considered os NlL.

leosehold lmprovemenls qre dePreciqted over its leqse terms.

ln the cose Holding Compony lhe ossets individuolly costing less thon 5,000/- is considered for lull depreciotion

of its co$ less its estimoted residuol voli/e in the yeor of oddition..

i) Recognition qnd meqsuremenl

lntongible ossets thot ore ocquired, ore recognized ot cost initiolly ond corried ol cost less occumuloied

omortizotion ond occumuloted impoirrned loss, if ony. On tronsilion to Ind AS, rhe Group hos elected to meosure

qll of its intongible ossets ot *|e previous GAAP corrying volue (deemed cost). subsequent expenditure is

copitolised only when il increoses the fuhrre economic benefiis embodied in the specific osset |o which it relotes.

An intongible osset is derecognised upon dirposol(ie., otlhe dote the recipienl oblqins conlrol)or when no Iuture economic

benefits ore expected f.om ils use or disposol. Any goin or loss orising upon derecognition of ihe os5el (coloJloted os

fie difference between the net disposql proceeds ond the corrying omount of the osset) is included inthe stolement

of profit ond loss, when lhe ossel is derecognised.
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The group qssesses ot eoch bolorrce street dote, whether there is objective evidence thot on qsset or o group of oslelt

is impqired. An osset's corying omount is written down immediotely fo ils recoverqble omount if the ossef's corrying

omount is greoter thon its estimqted recoveroble onloLnt ond depreciotion is provided on lhe revisgd corrying ofirolnl

over itJ remoining useful life. Recoveroble omount is higher of lhe volue in use or foir volue less cost to sell.

K.lntqngible qssets
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ii) Amortisolion
Amortisotion is colculoted to write off the cost of intongible ossets over their eslimoted useful lives using the

"stroight line method" (SLM) method, ond is included in depreciotion ond omortisotion in stotement of profit ond

loss. The Group uses o rebuttoble presumption thol lhe useful life of on intongible osset will not exceed len

yeors from the dote when the osset is ovoiloble for use. lf the persuosive evidence exists to the offecl thot

useful life of on intongible ossel exceeds ten yeors, the Group omortizes the inlongible osset over the best

estimote of its useful life. lntongible ossets consisting of computer progrommes ore omortized on stroight line

bosis over monthly equoted instolments over o period of five yeors. However, Softwores with limited license

period exceeding one yeor but shorter thon five-yeor period is omortized over the license period.

Amortisotion method ond useful lives ore reviewed ot the end of eoch finonciol yeor ond odiusted if oppropriote.

l. Copitol vvevft-in-progress

Copitol work-in-progress is recognized ot cost, net of occumuloted impoirment loss, if ony. lt comprises of property,

plont ond equipment thot ore not yet reody for their intended use ot the reporting dote.

Depreciotion is not recorded on copitol work-in-progress until constrtrtion ond instollotion ore complete ond the

osset is reody for its intended use by the monogement.

J. lnvenlories

lnventories consist of row moteriols, stores ond spores, work-in- progress ond finished goods ond ore meosured qt the

lower of cost or net reolizoble volue. However row moteriols which ore used in the process of production ore not written

down below the cost if fte finished goods produced from consumption of such moteriol ore sold ot or obove the cost'

Ihe cost of oll cotegories of inventories is bosed on the First ln First Out (FIFO) Bosis. Cost includes expenditures

incurred in ocquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs ond other cosls incurred in bringing them to their

existing locotion ond condition.

Net reolizoble volue is the estimoted selling price in the ordinory course of business, less the estimoted costs of

completion ond selling expenses.

(. lmpoirmentofossels

i) lmpoirmenl of finonciol inslrumenls

The group recognises loss ollowonces for expected credit losses on finonciol ossets meosured ot omortised cost

ond trode receivobles. At eoch reporting dote, the group ossesses whether finonciol ossets corried ot omortised cost

ore credit-impoired, A finonciol osset is'credit-impoired' when one or more evenb thol hove o detrimentol impoct on

the estimoted future cosh flows of the finonciolosset hove occurred.

Evidence thot o finonciol osset is credit-impoired includes the following observoble doto:

- significont finonciol difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- o breoch of controct;

- it is proboble thot the borrower will enter bonkruptcy or other finonciol reorgonisotion; or

- the disoppeoronce of on octive morket for o security becouse of finonciol difficulties.

The group meosures loss ollowonces ot on omount equol to lifetime expected credit losses.

For trade receivables onty, the Company appties the simptified aPproach permitted by lnd AS 109 Financial lnstruments'

which requires expected tifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivabtes.



The Company uses historicat default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivabtes. At every

reporting date these historicat defautt rates are reviewed and changes in the foruvard'[ooking estimates are anatysed'

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment toss where there is no significant increase

in credit risk. lf there is significant increase in credit risk ful[ tifetime ECL is used.

Lifetime expected credit losses ore the expected credit losses thot result from oll possible defoult events over the

expected life of o finonciol instrument.

I 2 months expected credit losses ore the portion of expected credil losses thot resuh from defoult events thot

ore possible within I 2 months ofter the reporting dote (or o shorter period if the expected life of the instrument

is less thon l2 months).

ln oll coses, the moximum period considered when estimoting expected credit losses is the moximum controctuol

period over which the group is exposed to credit risk.

Meosuremenl of expected credil losses

Expected credit losses ore o probobility-weighted estimote of credit losses. Credit losses ore meosured os the

present volue of oll cosh shortfolls (i.e, the difference between the cosh flows due to the group in occordonce

with the conlroct ond the cosh flows thot the group expects to receive).

Presenlolion of ollowonce for expecled credit losses in lhe bqlqnce sheel

Loss ollowonces for finonciol ossets meosured ot omortised cost ore deduaed from the gross corrying omounl of the

ossets.

Write-off

The gross corrying omount of o finonciol osset is written off (either portiolly or in full) to the extent thot there

is no reolistic prospect of recovery. This is generolly the cose when the group determines thot the debtor does

not hove ossets or sources of income thot could generote sufficient cosh flows to repoy the omounts subiect to

the write-off. However, finonciol ossets thot ore written off could still be subiect to enforcement octivities in

order to comply with the group's procedures for recovery of omounts due'

ii) lmpoirment of non-finqnciol ossels

The group's non-finonciol ossets, other thon inventories ond deferred tox ossels, ore reviewed ot eoch

1."poiring dote to determine whether there is ony indicotion of impoirment. lf ony such indicotion exists, lhen the

osset's recoveroble omount isestimoted.

For impoirment testing, ossets thot do not generote independent cosh inflows ore grouped together into cosh-

generoting units (CGUs). Eoch CGU represents the smollest group of ossets thot generotes cosh inflows thot ore

lorgely independent of the cosh inflows of other ossets or CGUs.

Ihe group boses its impoirment colculotion on deloiled budgets ond forecost colculotions, which ore prepored

,upo.t"ly for eoch of the group's CGUs to which the individuol ossets ore ollocoted. Ihese budgets ond forecost

colcglotions generolly cover o period of five yeors. For longer periods, o long-term growth rote is colculoted ond

opplied to pioiect future cosh f lows ofter the fifth yeor. To estimote cosh flow proiections beyond periods covered by

the most recent budgets/forecosts, rhe group extropototes cosh flow proiections in the budget using o steody

or declining growth rote for subsequenl yeors, unless on increosing rote con be iustified. ln ony cose, this growth rote

does not exceed the long- term overoge growth rote for the products, industries, or country or countries in whidr the

group operoles, or for the morket in which the osset is used.

The recoveroble omount of o CGU (or on individuol osset) is rhe higher of its volue in use ond its foir volue less costs

to sell. Volue in use is bosed on the estimoted fulure cosh flows, discounted to their present volue using o pre-tox

discount rote lhot reflects current morket ossessments of the time volue of money ond the risks specific to the CGU
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(or lhe osset).

The group's corporote qssets (e.g., centrol office building for providing support to vorious CGUs) do not generote

independent cosh inflows. To deiermine impoirmenl of o corporoie osset, recoveroble omount is delermined for

the CGUS lo which the corporole ossel belongs.

An impoirmefi loss is recognised if the corrying omount of on osset or CGU exceeds its estimoted recoYeroble

omount. lmpoirment losses ore recognised in the stotement of profit ond loss.

ln resped of os5eB for which impoirment loss hos been recognised in prior periods,lhe grolp reviews ot eoch

reporting dote whether there is ony indicolion thol the loss hos decreosed or no longer exisls. An impoirmenl loss is

reversed if there hqs been o dtonge in the estimoles used to deiermine the recoveroble omount. Sudl o reversol is mode

only to the extent thot the osset's corrying ornowt does nol exceed the corrying omount lhot woold hove been

deiermined, net of depreciotion or drYlorfisotion, if no impoirmenl loss hos been recognised.

L, Employee benefits

(i) Shorl-term employee benefils

liobilities for woges ond solories, including non-rpnelory berefiis thot ore expecled to be senled wholly within l2
nrontls ofter the end of the period in which the employees render the reloled service ore recognised in resped of

employees' services upto the end of the reporting period ond ore meosured on on undiscounled bosis of lhe omounh

expected to be poid when the liobilitres ore serled. The liobilities ore presenled qs qrrrenl employee benefit

obligotions in the bolonce 5heeL

(ij) Defined contribution plqns

A defined contribution plon is o post-employment benefil plon under which on entity poys fixed contributions inlo

o seporofe entity ond will hove no legol or constructive obligotion lo poy further qmounts, The group mokes

specified monthly contribdions towords Government odminislered provided fund scheme ond other funds.

6bligolions for contributions to defined contribution plons ore recognised os on employee benefit expense in

stotement of profit ond loss in rhe periods during whidr the reloted services ore rendered by employees.

Provident Fund

Eligible employees receive benefits from o Proyident Fund, which is o defined benefft plon. Bolh the employee

ond rhe Holding compony mokes monthly conributions lo the Providenl Fund Plon wift Employees Provident

Fund of Centrol Government equol to 5pecified percentoge of the covered employee's tolory'

(ili) Defined benefitplone

A defined benefir plon is o post-employrnent benefit plon other thon o defined contribution plon. The liobility or

qsset recognised in the bqlonce sheet in respect of defined benefir plons is the present vqlue of the defined

benefit obiigotion or rhe end of fie reporting period less the foir volue of plon ossels. The defined benefit

obligqtion is colclloted onnuolly by o quolified octuory using fie proiected unil credil method'

The present volue of lhe defined benefit obligotion ir delermined by discounting lhe estimoled fdu.e cosh

outflows by reference to morket yields ot the end of fie reporling period on governmed bonds lhot hqve terms

opproximoting to the tenns of the reloted obligotion'

The net interest cost is colculoted by opplying fie discounl rote to the nel bolonce of the defined benefil

obligotion ond the foir vqlue of plqn ossets. This cost is included in employee benefif expense in ihe sfqtement

of profil ond loss.

Remeosurement gOin! qnd losses orising from experience Odiustments Ond chongeS in ocluOriol ossumptions

ore r rognised in the period in which rhey occrr, directly in other comprehensive income. They ore included in
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retsined eornings in lhe stqlement of chonges in equity ond in the bolonce:heet'

Chonges in fhe present volue of the defined benefit obligolion resuhing from plon ornendnEnts or crrtoilments

ore recognised immediotely in profit or loss qs posl service cosf.

Grotuily
The Holding compony provide3 fof grotuity, o defined retiremenl plon ("lhe Grotuity Plon") covering eligible

"mployeer. 
Ihe Grqtuity provides o lumpsum poyment, lo vesled employees ot fie time of fieir leoving,

retirement, deoth, incopdcitotion or lerminotion of employme , of on omount bosed on the respective

employee's solory ond the tenure of employment with the Holding Compony.

Liobilifies with regord to the Grotuity Plon ore delermined by ocluoriol voluolion done by on outsourced

octuory ot eoch bolonce sheet dote ond recognised on net botis in the Bolonce sheet in occordonce with the

lndion Accoonting Srondord l9 "Employee Benefits"'

(iv) Terminotion benef its

Terminotion benefits ore recognized os on expense when the group is demonstrqbly commitled, withoul

reolistic possibility of withdrowol, to o formol detoiled plon to eilher terminole employmed before the normol

retirement dote, or to provide terminolion benefiis os o result oI on offer mode to encouroge volunlory

redundoncy. Terminotion benefits for voluntory redundoncies ore recognized os on expense if fie group hos

mode on offer encouroging volunlory redundoncy, it is proboble thol the ofler will be qccepted, qnd the

number of qcceplonces con be eitimoted reliobly.

(v) Other long-term employee benefits

The group,s net obligotion in resped oI other long lerm employee benefits is lhe omount of future benefit lhql

..pty.u, hove eorned in return for their service in the current qnd previous periods. Thot benefit is

disiounted fo delermine its present volue, Re-meosurements ore recognized in lhe slolement of profil ond loss

in the period in which they orise.

Compensoled Absences

Accumulqted leoves, which is expeded to be utilized wilhin the next 12 months, is lreoted os shod-lerm

employee benefit. The Holding compony treols occumuloted leove expected to be corried forword beyond

twelve months, qs long-term employee benefit for meosurement purposes, The Holding compony meosures

the expected cost of such obsences os the odditionol omount thol it expects to poy os o result of the unused

entitlement lhot hos occumuloled ot the reporting dote.

Such long-term compensoted obsences ore provided for bosed on lhe octuoriol voluotion using fie ploieded

unit credit method ot the yeor-end. Acluoriol goins/losses ore immediotely token to the olher comprehensive

income.

I't. Leqses

The grorrp ossesses ot conlroct inceplion whelher o controcl is, o. contoins, o leqse. Thot is, if ihe conttqcl conveys

he righ ro control the use of on identified osset for o period of lime in exchqnge for considerotion.

Group os o Lessot

Leoses for which the group is o lessor ore clossified os o finonce or operoling leose. Whenever the lerms of o

leose tronsfer substontiolly oll the risks ond rewords of ownership to the lessee, the conlroct is clossified qs o finonce

leose, Allother leoses ore clossified os operqting leoses, Rentol income from operoting leoses ore recognised

on stroight line bosis over lhe term of relevonl leose.

Group os o Lessee

on tronsition ro lnd As, the Group hos ovoiled the exemption provided in Appendix D of lnd AS l0l v.r.t. recognition of

leore liobilities ond right-of-use ossels lor ih leose orrongements. The Group hos opplied ApPendix B of lnd AS l16

determining whether on Arrongemenl conloins O Leose lo delermine wheiher on orrongement exisling Ot the lronsition dote

conloinr o leose on the bosi! of focls ond circumslonces exitting ot thot dofe'
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the group opplies o single recognition ond meosuremenl opprooch for oll leoses, except for short-term leoses ond

leoses of low- volue ossets. The group recognises leose liobilities to moke leose poyments ond right-of-use ossets

representing the right to use the underlying ossets.

The group determines the leose term os the non-concelloble period of o leose, togelher with both periods covered

by on option to extend the leose if the group is reosonobly certoin to exercise thot option; ond periods covered by

on option to terminote the leose if the group is reosonobly certoin not to exercise thot option. ln ossessing whether the

group is reosonobly certoin to exercise on option to extend o leosg or not to exercise on option to lerminote o leose, il
considers oll retevont focts ond circumstonces thot creote on economic incentive for the group to exercise the oplion to

extend the leose, or not to exercise the option to terminote the leose, The group revises the leose term if there is o chonge

in the non-concelloble period of o leose.

R.ighl of use ossel

The group recognises right-of-use ssset representing its right to use the underlying osset for the leose term ot

the leose commencement dote. The cost of the right-of-use osset meosured ol inception sholl comprise of the omount

of the initiol meosurement of the leose liobility odjusted for ony leose poyments mode ot or before the commencemenl

dote less ony leose incentives received, plus ony initiol direct costs incurred ond on estimote of costs to be incurred

by the lessee in dismontling ond removing the underlying osset or restoring lhe underlying osset or site on which it is

locoted, The right-of-use ossets is subsequently meqsured ot cost less ony occumuloted depreciotion, occumuloted

impoirment losses, if ony ond odiusted for ony remeosurernent of the leose liobility. The right-of-use ossets is

deprecioted using the stroight-line method f rom the commencement dote over the shorter of leose lerm or useful

life of right-of-use osset. The estimoted useful lives of right-of use ossets ore determined on the some bosis os

those of property, plont ond equipment, Right-of-use ossets ore tested for impoirment whenever there is ony

indicotion thot their corrying omounts mqy not be recoveroble. lmpoirment loss, if ony, is recognised in the stqtement

of profit ond loss.

leose Liobilily

The group meosures the leose liobility ot present volue of the future leose poyments ol the commencement dote

of the leose. ln colculoting the present volue of leose poyments, the group uses its incrementol borrowing rote ot

the leose comrnencernent dote becouse fie interest rote implicit in the leose is not reodily determinoble. The leose

liobility is subsequently remeosured by increosing the corrying omount to reflect interest on the leose liobility,

reducing the corrying omount to reflect the leose poyrnents mode ond remeosuring the corrying omount to reflect

ony reossessment or leose modificotions or lo reflect revised in- substonce fixed leose poyments. The group recognises

the omount of the re-meosurement of leose liobility due to modificotion os on odiuslment to lhe right-of-use osset

ond stotement of profit ond loss depending upon the noture of modificotion. Where the corrying omount of

the right-of-use osset is reduced to zero ond there is o further reduction in lhe meosurement of the leose liobility,

the group recognises ony remoining omount of the re-meosurement in stolement of profit ond loss.

Shorl-lerm leoses qnd Ieoses of low-volue qssels

The group opplies the short-term leose recognition exemption lo its short-term leoses of buildings, mochinery ond

equipment (i,e,, those leoses thot hove o leose term of l2 months or less from lhe commencement dote ond do not

contoin o purchose option). lt olso opplies the leose of low-volue ossets recognition exemption lo leoses of office

equipment thot ore considered to be low volue. Leose poymenrs on short-term leoses ond leoses of low-volue ossets

ore recognised os expense on o stroight-line bosis over the leose term.

N. Income lqxes

Toxes comprises Current Tox, Deferred lox ond MAT credit. lt is recognised in profit or loss except to the

extent thot it relotes to on item recognised direcfly in equily or in other comprehensive income.



(i) Current tox

Current tox comprises the expected tox poyoble or receivoble on the toxoble income or loss for the yeor ond ony

odiustment to the tox poyoble or receivoble in respecl of previous yeors. The qmount of current lox reflects the best

estimote of the tox omount expected to be poid or received qfter considering the uncertointy,il ony, reloted to income

toxes. lt is meosured using tox rotes (ond lox lows) enocted or substontively enocted by the reporting dote.

Monogement periodicolly evoluotes positions loken in the tox returns with respect to situotions in which

opplicoble tox regulotions ore subiect to interpretotions ond considers whether it is proboble thot o toxotion

outhority will occept on uncertoin tox treotment'

Current tox ossets ond current tox liobilities ore offset only if there is o legolly enforceoble right to set off the

recognised omounts, ond h is intended to reolise the osset ond setlle the liobility on o net bosis or simultoneously.

(ii)Deferted tox

Deferred tox is recognised in respect of temporory differences between the corrying omounts of ossets ond liobilities

for finonciol reporting purposes ond the corresponding qmounts used for toxotion purposes' Deferred tox is not

recognised for:
- i"rporory differences orising on the initiol recognition of ossets or liobilities in o tronsoclion thot is not o

business combinotion ond thot offects neither occounting nor toxoble profit or loss ot the time of the

tronsoction; ond
- temporory differences reloted to investments in subsidiories lo the exlent thot the group is oble lo control

the iiming of the reversol of the temporory differences ond it is proboble thot they will nor reverse in the

foreseeoble future.

Deferred tox ossets ore recognised for deductible temporory differences, the corry forwords of unused tox

credits ond unused tox losses. Deferred tox ossefs ore recognised to the extent thot it is proboble thot future

toxoble profits will be ovoiloble ogoinst which lhey con be used. The exislence of unused tox losses is strong

evidence thot future toxoble profit moy not be ovoiloble. Therefore, in cose of o history of recent losses, the

group recognises o deferred tox osset only to the extent rhot il hos sufficient toxoble temporory differences

or rhere is convincing other evidence thot sufficient toxoble profit will be ovoiloble ogoinst which such deferred

tox osset con be reqlised. Deferred tox ossets - unrecognised or recognised, ore reviewed ot eoch reporting

dote ond ore recognised/reduced to the extent thot it is proboble/no longer proboble respectively thot the

reloted tox benefit will be reolised'

Deferred tox is meosured ot the tox roles thot ore expected to opply to the period when the osset is reolised

or the liobility is settled, bosed on the lows thot hove been enocted or sub$ontively enocted by the reporting

dote.

The meosurement of deferred tox reflects the tox consequences thot would follow from the monner in which

the group expects, ot the reporting dote, to recover or settle the corrying omount of its osseh qnd liobilities.

Tox benefits ocquired os port of o business combinotion, but not sotisfying the criterio for seporote recognition

ot thot dote, ore recogniied subsequently if new informotion obout focts ond circumslonces chonge. Acquired

deferred tox benefits recognised within rhe meosurement period reduce goodwill reloted to thot ocquisition if

they result from new informotion obtoined oboul focts ond circumstonces existing ot the ocquisition dote. lf the

coriying omount of goodwill is zero, ony remoining deferred tox benefits ore recognised in OCI/copitol

,eseive-d"pending on the principle exploined for borgoin purchose goins. All other ocquired tox benefits

reolised ore recognised in profit or loss.

Ihe Group offsets deferred tox ossets ond deferred lox liobilities if ond only if it hos o legolly enforceoble

right to iet off current tox ossets ond current tox liobilities ond the deferred tox ossets ond deferred tox

liobilities relote to income toxes levied by the some toxotion oulhority on either the some toxoble entity or

different toxoble entities which intend either to settle current tox liobilities ond ossets on o net bosis, or to

f
* *
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reolise the ossets ood settle the liqbitities simultoneously, in eoch future period in whidr significont omount of

deferred lox liobilities or ossels ore expeded lo be setlled or recovered'

(iii) Minimum AlternqtE Tox (MAT) Credit

Minifium oltemote tox (MAT) credit Is recognised in occordonce with tox lowt in lndio os on osset or y when ond lo

dle exte there is convincing eyidence thot the group will poy nonnql income lox during the specified period. The

group reviews tfie MAT credit ot eodr bqlonce sheet dote qnd writes down fie corrying ornount of lt'\AT credil

;ntitlemenr to ihe extent there is no longer convincing evidence to tfie effecl thot lhe group will Pqy nor,nol incorne lox

during the specified period"

0. Prcvision,conlingentliqbililiesondconlingenlsssels

Provision

A provision h recognised if, os o result of o post event, the group hos o present legol or constructive obligqtion thol con

be estirnqted reliobly, ond it i5 probqblefiot on outftow of economic benefits will be required to setile the obligotion.

Provisions ore determined by discounling the expected future cosh llows (representing the besl estimole of fie
expenditure required to se le lhe present obligotion ol the bolonce sheet dote) ol o Pre-tox role thot reflectt currenl

morket qssessments of the time volue of money ond the rislc specific to the liobility. The unwinding of lhe discounl

is recognised under ffnonce cosB. Expeded future operoting losses qre not provided for. Provision in respect of loss

conrinjencies reloting to cloims, litigotions, ossessmenls, fines ond penolties ore recognhed when it is proboble thot o

liobility hos been inc1].red ond lhe omount con be estimoled reliobly.

Contingent liobilities

A contingent liobility exists when there is q possible but not proboble obligotion, or q preleff obligoiion lhot mqy,

bu problbly will not, require on outflow of resources, or q present obligolion whose omouni connol be eslimoted

reli;bly. Contingent liobilities do not worront provisions, but ore disclosed unless the possibility of ouflow of resources

is temofe.

Conlingenl q5rel5

Conting-ent osseh ore not reaognised in linonciol stotemenf. However, when the reolisotion of income is virfuqlly

cerloin, then the reloted ossel is no longer o contingent ossetr but il is recognised os on ossef'

Contingenl Liobililiet/Assett to the extent lhe Monogemenl is owore, qre disclosed by woy of notes to the

finonciol stolements.

PAD

P,Governmenl gronls

Gronts & Subsidies received from the Governmenls ore recognised only when there is reosonoble ossuronce lhot:

a. The group will comply with the conditions ottodled to lhegronl;

b. There is o reosonoble certointy thot the gront will be received'

Governmenl gronts reloted to ossets Ore lreoted os deferred irrome ond ore recognized in nel profit in ihe

stotenEnt of Profit & Loss on o systemolic ond rotionol bosis over the useful life of the ossel Governrnent gront!

reloted to revenue ore recognized on o systemotic bosiS in net profil in the Stotement of Profit & [oss over the

periods necessqry fo mqtch ihem with the relqted cosls which they ore intended lo compensote'

A
o
* NO
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Wqrronties

ln cose of Holding compqny, provision of worrqnly is mode ogoinst the revenue recognised for lhe purpose

of providing the fiee of co$ ofler sole seryices over lhe ogreed controcled period which ronges from minimum

one yeor f;m the dote of sole to 5 yeors. such provision is determined os per octuoriol Yoluotion Iepod of

on independenl octuo rY.
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When loons or similor ossistonce ore provided by Governments or reloted institulions, with on interest rote

below the qrrrent opplicoble morket rote, the effect of this fovouroble interest is regorded os o Government

gront. The loon or ossistonce is initiolly recognized ond meosured ot foir volue ond the Government gront is

meosured os the difference between the foir volue of the loon ond the proceeds received. lt is recognized os

deferred income ond releosed to stotement of Profit & Loss in proportionole over the loon tenure ond

presented within other income, The loon is subsequently meosured os per the occounting policy opplicoble to

finonciol liobilities.

Q. Eornings per shore

Bosic Eornings Per Shore ('EPS') is computed by dividing the net profit ottributoble fo the equity shoreholders by

the weighted overoge number of equity shores outstonding during the period excluding the treosury shores in

occordonce wirh lnd AS 33 Eornings per shore.

Diluted eornings per shore is computed by dividing the net profit by the weighted overoge number of equity strores

considered for deriving bosic eornings per shore ond olso the weighted overoge number of equity shores thot

could hove been issued upon conversion of oll dilutive potenliol equity shores. Dilutive potentiol equity shores ore

deemed converted os of the beginning of the yeor, unless issued ot o loter dote. ln computing diluted eornings per

shore, only potentiol equity shores thot ore dilutive ond thot either reduces eornings per shore or increoses loss per

shore ore included. The number of shores ond potentiolly dilutive equity shores ore odiusted retrospectively for oll

periods presented for the shore splits'

R. Slolemenl of cosh flow

Cosh flows ore reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/(loss) before tox is odiusled for the effects of

tronsoctions of o non-cosh noture qnd ony deferrols or occruols of post or fufure cosh receipts or poyments ond

item of income or expenses ossocioted with investing or finoncing cosh flows. The cosh flows from regulor revenue

generoting (operoting octivities), investing ond finoncing octivities of the group ore segregoted. The Group considers

ott triglrty liquid investments thot ore reodily convertible to known ornounts of cosh ond ore subiect to on insignificont risk

of chonges in volue to be cosh equivolents.

S, Cosh ond cosh equivolenls

For the purpose of presentotion in the stotement of cosh flows, cosh ond cosh equivolents includes cosh on hond,

depositi n.jd ot .oil *irh finonciol institutions, other short-term, highly liquid inveshnents with originol moturities of

three months or less thot ore reodily convertible lo known omounts of cosh ond which ore subiect to on insignificont

risk of chonges in volue.

Bonk overdrofts ond Cosh Credit thof ore repoyoble on demond ond form on inlegrol port of our cosh monogement

ore included os o component of cosh ond cosh equivolents for the purpose of the stolement of cosh flows. Whereos

they ore clossified os borrowings under current liobilities in the bolonce sheet.

T, Reseqrch ond Developmenl Costs (Product Development)

Reseorch expenditure is recognized os on expense when it is incurred. Development expenditure on on individuol

proiect ore recognised os on intongible ossetwhen the groupcon demonstrote:

a) The technicolfeosibility of completing the intongible osset so tho, the osset will be ovoiloble for use or sole;

b) lts intention to complete ond its obility ond intention to use or sell the product;

c) How the osset will generote future economic benefits;

d) The ovoilobility of resources to complete the osset;

e) Ihe obility to meosure reliobly the expenditure during development'

Expenditure on development which does not meet lhe criterio for recognition os on intongible osset is recognized

os on expense when it is incurred.

*



Applied Reseorch lnlernolionql Privqte Limiled
ClNr U73I 00DLl 998P1CO9728O
Noler lo lhe Con!olidoled Finqncidl Sloiements
Forlhe Yeor erded lvlorch 3I, 2025
(All Amounts ore in INR tokhs, unlest otherwise sloted)

Items of property, plont ond equipme ond ocquired lntongible Assets utilized for Reseqrch ond Developnent ore

copitolized ond deprecioied in occordonce with lhe policies stoted for Prope.ty, Plont ond Equipment ond

lntongible Assets.

U. Evenls qfter reporling dote

Vy'here events occurring ofter the bolonce sheet dole provide evidence of conditions fiol exisled ot the end of
the .eporting period, fte impod of such events is odiu$ed wifiin fie Iinondol stotements. Olherwise, evenls ofter
the bolonce rheet dote of moteriol size or nqture ore only disclosed.

V, Error!ond 6!limoles

The Group revises it's qccounting policies if the dronge h required due to o <honge in lnd AS or if the chonge will

provide more relevont ond relioble informotion to the users of fie finonciol stoternerf5. Chqnges in oc.ounting Policies
q.e opplied retrospectively, unlets it is improcticoble lo opply'

A dronge in on occour ing estirnote thot results in dronges in ihe corrying ornounts of re@gnised ossets o. liobililies or

lo rlolemerf of profit ond loss ls opplied prospecliYely in fie period{s} of dtonge.

W. Use of edimoies qnd iudgemenls

ln preporing these consolidoted finonciol stolements, monogemenl hos mode iudgemenfs, estimotes ond ossumplions

hot offect the opplicqrion of occounting policies ond the reporled omounts of ossets, liobilities, in@nE qnd

expenses, Actuol results moy diffe. rrom those eslimoles.

Estimotes ond underlying qtstmptions qre reviewed on on ongoing bosis. Revisions to qccounting eslimotes

ore recognised ProsPectivelY.

i) Useful lives of property, plont ond eqrripment

The Monogemed of the Group reviews lhe useful lives of property, plqnt ond equipment ot leosl once q

yeor. Such lives ore dependent upon on ossessment of both the lechnicol lives of the osse* ond olso their

likely ecoromic lives bosed on vorious internol ond externql foclors including relotiYe efficiency ond

operoting costs. This reossessment moy result in dronge in depreciqtion ond omortisotion expeded in future

periods. h is porsible $ot fie estimotes mode bosed on existing experience qre different from the octuol

oulcofiEs ond could couse o mqteriol odiustnrent to the corrying omount of property, plo ond equipmenl'

ii) Provisions ond Confingencies:

Provisions ond liobilities ore recognized in the period when il becomes proboble thot there will be o ftrture

outflow of funds resulting from port events thot con reosonqbly be eslimoled. The timing of recognition

requires opplicotion of iudgemenl lo existing focls ond circumstqnces which moy be subiect to chonge.

ln the normol course of business, contingent liobilities orise from litigolions ond cloims. For contingent losses

thot ore considered proboble, on estimqted loss is recorded os on occ.uol in the Restqted Consolidqted

Finonciol lnformotion. Potentiol liobilities thol ore possible but nol proboble of crystollising or qre very

difficult to quontify reliobly ore treoted qs conlingenl liobilities. Such contingenl li(rbilities ore disclosed in

the noies but ore not recognized. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remole ore nol disclosed in the

Restoted Consol!doted Finonciol lnformofion. Contingent goins ore not recognized untilihe conlingency hos

been resolved ond ornounts ore received or receivoble.

iiD lncome Toxes;

PAD
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o
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Significont iudgements ore involved in determining the provision for income toxes, including omount expected



to be pqid/recovered for uncertqin tox posifions, ln qssessing the reqlizobility of deferred lox o5sets orising

from unused tox credits, lhe monogement considers convincing evidence obout ovoilobility of sufficient

toxoble income ogoinst which such unused tox credits con be utilized. The omount of the deferred income

lox ossets considered reolizoble, however, could chonge if eslimotes of future loxoble inconE chonges in

lhe fdure.

iv) Defined benefit plqns:

The present volue of defined benefit obligqtions ore determined using octuoriol voluotions' An ocruoriol

voluotion involves mqking vorious ossumptions thot moy differ from oduol developrnent in the fulure. These

include the determinotion of the discount rote, future solory escolotions ond mortolity roles etc. Due to the

complexiries involved in the voluoiion ond ifs long term noture, o defined benefit obligotion is highly sensitive

to chonges in these qslumptions. All ossumptions ore reviewed ol eoch reporting dqte.

The Group determines fie oppropriote discount rote ot the end of eqch period. Ihit is lhe inlerest rote lhot

should be used to determine the present volue of estimoted fulure cosh outflows expected to be required

to settle rhe defined benefit obligotions. ln determining lhe opproprioie discount rote, the Group consider!

the interest rotes of government bonds of moturity opproximoting the terms of fie reloted plon liobility,

v) lnventories:

vi) lmpoirment of finorrciol ossets:

Expecled credt loss: The meosurement of expecled credit loss on finonciol ossets iJ bosed on lhe evoluotion

of collectobility ond the monogement's iudgemeni considering exlernql qnd internql sources of informolion.

A consideroble omount of iudgemeni is required in ossessing ihe ultimote reqlizotion of the loons hoving

regord to, the post collection history of eoch pody ond ongoing deolings with these porlies, ond ossessrnent

of their qbilit). lo poy lhe debt on designoled dotes.

vii) lmpoirment of non-finonciol ossets:

lmpoirment exi$s when lhe corrying volue of qn ossel or cosh generoting unit exceeds ils recoveroble

qrnount, which is fie higher of its foir volue less costs of disposol ond its vqlue in use. The fqir volue less cosls

of disposol colorlotion is bosed on ovoiloble doto from binding soles lronsoctions, conducted ol orm's length,

for similor ossets or observoble mo*et prices less incrementol costs for disposing of the osset The volue in

use colculofion is bosed on o discounted cosh llow model. The cosh flows ore derived from fhe budget for

the next five yeo6 ond do not include restrucluring oclivilies thol $e Group is not yel committed to or

significont futwe inveslmenls lhol will enhonce lhe osset's performonce of rhe CGU being tested. the

recoveroble qmount is sensitive to the discounl rote used for the discounted cosh flow model os well os the

expeded fuiure cqsh-inflows ond the growth rote used for ext.opolotion purposes. These eslimotes ore most

relevont lo goodwill ond other inlongibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by rhe Group'

The Monogement of the Group esrimotes the net reolisoble volue (NRV) of its invenlories by ioking into

occount their estimoted selling price, estimoted co$ of completion, estimoled co5t5 necessory to moke lhe

sole, Monogement periodicolly reviews the inventory listing to determine if ony ollowonce should be

qccounted for in the Restoied Consotidoted Finonciql lnformotion for obsolete or slow-moYing ifems, ond to

compore lhe corrying volue of inventory items wilh their respeclive net reolizoble volue.

viii) lmpoirmenl tesl of inveslmenls in Subsidiories ond Joint Venture Componies

The recoveroble qmoud of investmenl in subsidiories ond ioint venture componies is bosed on eslimofes ond

ossumptions regording in porticulor the future cqsh flows ossociqted with the operotions of the investee

Group. Any dronges in these ossumptions moy hove o moteriol impqcl on the rneosurement of the

recoverqble omount ond could result in impoirment.

o
*
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X, Recenl pronouncemenls

Ministry of Corporote Affoirs ('MCA') notifies new stondords or omendments to the existing stondords under Componies

(lndion Accounting Stondords) Rules os issued from time to time. For the yeor ended Mordr 31 ,2025, MCA hos not notified

new stondords or omendments to the existing stondords, which moy be opplicoble to the Compony.
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Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN : U73 I 00DLr 998PT C097 280
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note 3 : Right of use assets*

Gross amount:

*Refer Note 47
(This space is intentionally left blank)

PAD

f
(,
*

(1'

9
*

Additions during the year

Deletions during the year

TotalParticulars
as at

Balance as at March 31,2024 1,643.10 1,643.10

Additions during the year

Deletions during the year

Balance as at March 31,2025 1,643.10 1,643.10

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1,2023

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year
328.43328.43

Balance as at March 31,2024 328.43 328.43

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

328.43328.43

Balance as at March 31,2025 656.86 656.86

1,2023
amounts

as 1,643.10

Bahnce as at March 31,2024 1,314.67 1,314.67

Balance as at March 31,2025 986.24 986.24

1,643.10



Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73l00DLr 998PTC097280
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note 4 : assets

Note:Ind-AS l0l Exemption: The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value for all its Intangible Assets

as recognised in its financial statements as at transition date to Ind AS i.e, April 1,2023 measured as per the

previous GAAP and use that as deemed cost as at the transition date to Ind AS.

(Ihis space is intentionally left blank)

Computer
Programmes/Softwares

Total (A)Particulars

Gross carrying amount:
397.90 397.90Bafance as at April 1,2023

Add: Additions during the period

Less: Disposals during the period

397.90 397.90Balance as at March 31,2024

t.4t t.4l
Add: Additions during the period

Less: Disposals during the period
396.49 396.49Balance as at March 31,2025

Accumulated Amortization
147.71 147.71Balance as at April 1,2023

50.28Add: Additions during the period

Less: Disposals during the period
50.28

198.00 198.00Balance as at March 31r2024
s0.03
t.4t

50.03
t.4t

Add: Additions during the period

Less: Disposals during the period
246,62 246.62Balance as at March 31r2025

Carryins amounts (net)
250.18250.18Balance as at April 1,2023

r99.90 r99.90Balance as at March 31,2024
149.87 r49.87Balance as at March 3Lr2025

PAD

* *



Applied Reseerch Internatioml Private Limited

CIN: U73l00DLl99EPTC097280
Notec to tte CoNolidsted Fhancial Statemetrls
(Amouts ere in INR Lacs urless othemise stgted)

Particulgrs As at
March 31,

z0z5

As at As et
March 31, April r, 2023

2021

5 InvestmeBt Accouted using Equity Mcthod
Investment in Joint Venture (unquoted) measured at cost
Add: ProfiV(loss) accomted on equity method

Add: share in other comprehensive income

Total

Fhsncial $sets : non current

Losns

Unsecured, considered good, uless otheruise stat€d

Loan to Staffand Othem

Total

Othcr fDsncial assets

Umecured, considered good, uless otheruise stated

Deposits with original mtrriry of more

than 12 monthsr

Interest Aocrcd on Fixed Deposits

Other notr curetrt asseh
tlmecured, coroidered gmd, uless othetrise stated

kepaid Expemes

Amomt deposited uder Protest with Tax Authorities (refer note 39)

Interest on lncome Tu Refind Receiveable (refer note 39)

Totd

Itrventories

Csrried rt cost or net realisable value which ever less

Raw mterials
Work-in progress

Total

t4.4t
(7.85)

9.6t
s.26

(0.46)

t5.66
(6.06)

6.s6 14.41 9.6I

6

1

8.97 10.09

E.97 10.09

1,126.00

43.85

t,932.54

101.58

2,484.47

61.46

Totsl 1,169.85 2.545.93

*Deposits mouting to Rs. 625.99 Lakhs as at Much 31, 2025 (Much 31, 2024 Rs. 549.53 Lakhs and Mrch 31, 2023 Rs.

1,388.12 Lakh) ue plodged agaimt mgin money. All mugin money deposits ue either against OD limit or agahst Performce
gmtees fiom banks.

9

l0

0.01

124.00

50.22

0.02

t24.00
14.13

0.42

t24.00
14. l3

174.23 l3E.I5 rr8.56

+This momt is adjusted by the Lncome Tu Department towilds the demmd for the finmcial yeu 2016-17, which is curently

mder dispute md pending adjudrcation before the ClT(Appeals), Delhi .

15.87
62.35

3.76
69.05

2.43
315.81

78.23 72.81 3r8.24

PAA
€

o',
*

oo
*



Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73100DLr998PTC097280
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note : 8 Deferred tax assets/ (liability)
a. Amount recosnised in statement of profit and loss

For the year
ended

March 31,2025

For the year
ended

March 3I,2024
Current income tax

Current year

Earlier year tax

777.48 367.75

l.7 t

Total
Defered tax

777.48
(32. l5)

369.46
(l 10.65)

Total 74s.33 2s8.81

b. lncome taxes on other rncome

March 3r. 202s

For the year
ended

For the year
ended

March 31.2024

Deferred tax
Re-measurements of defined benefit plans 8.94

Total 8.94

c. Reconciliation oftax expense

March 31. 202s

For the year
ended

For the year
ended

March 31.2024

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before tax
Enacted income tax rate*

Tax amount
Add/(deduct) impact of:
Expenses not allowable in income tax

Expenses allowable in income ta,r

Change in tax rate

Tax relating to earlier years

Permanent Differences

EfIect of income tax that is exempt for tax
Others

2,715.t9
29.12%

820.01

29.12o/o

790.66

8l .93

(e7.73)

(29.s3)

152.94

(e l .e8)

( 13.48)

t.7l

238.79

(29.t7)

Tax 745.33 258.81

r Tax rate of29.l2o/o corporate tax of lZo/r,surcharge l2o/o andhealth and cess of 4oZ on the tax amount.

d, Movement in deferred tax balances

The major components ofdeferred tax (liabitities) / assets arising on account oftiming differences are as follows:

Particulars As at
March 31.2024

Recognised in
profit and loss

Recognised in
OCT

As at
March 31,2025

Deferred tax (liabilities)/asset :

Provision for employee benefit

Brought forward loss

Foreign operation translation reserve

Acturial (Loss)/Gain

Right ofuse assets and lease liabilities
Property, plant, equipments and intangible

assets

Provision for ECL

(188.04)
(21.4s)

(0.82)
(37.47)
(21.86)

2.10

25.24

33.99

5.90

(r62.80)
(t2.53)

(5.08)
(73.3 t)
(33.86)
(43.27)

(35.84)

(12.00)
(4s.37)

(8.e4) (2t.79)

Deferred tax /liabilities (net)
02.85)

fi.t8) (152.64\



Particulars As at
April 1,2023

Recognised in
profit and loss

Recognised in
OCI

As at
March 31,2024

Deferred tax (liabilities)/asset :

Provision for employee benefit

Brought forward loss

Foreign operation translation reserve

Acturial (Loss)/Gain

Right ofuse assets and lease liabilities
Property, plant, equipments and intangible

assets

(162.e4)
(28.-21)

(28.53)

98.04

(2s, l0)
6.76

(0 82)

(2 r .86)
(es.e4)

(8.e4)

( 188.04)

(2r.4s)
(0.82)

(37.47)
(2 1.86)

2.t0

Deferred tax (asset) /liabilities (net) (1s9.98)
25.49

(ttt.47) (8.94) (280.39)

(Ihis space is intentionally left blank)
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Applied Reseorch International Private Limited
CIN: U73100DL1998PTC097280
Notes to tte CoNolidated Financial Strtements
(Amouts ere in INR Lacs unless otheruise stated)

Particulars As rt
March 31,

2025

As rt
March 31,

2024

As at
April 1,2023

ll Trade receivables*

(Unsecured, considered good, unless stst€d otheilise)

Trade receivable - billed

Trade receivable - ubilled
Trade receivable - which have significmt increase incredit risk

Trade roceivable - credit impated
Trade receivable - from related parlies

Less; Impairment Allowmce (allowmce for bad md doubtfirl debts)

Provision ofExpected Credit loss
Trade receivables - credit impatred

Totsl

Above Trade receivables inolude due by dtectors or other officers

of the compmy or my of them either severally or jointly with my
other percons or mouts due by fim or private compmies

respectively in which any director is a partner o( a dircctor or a

member (refer note 43)

+ Refer note 4l for ageing oftrade receivables

Reconcilistion of loss allowance provision of trade receivables:

Loss allowance at begiming of the yeu
Increase in loss allowmce recognised in profit or loss duing the

yeil

Receivables written offduring the yeu ro mcollectible

Loss allowance at closing of the year

t2 Cash and cash equ.ivalents

Balmces with Baoks

in Cmnt accomts

Deposits with original mtuity for less thm 3 months

Cash on hand

Total

l3 Bank balance other thatr above*

Deposits with original mtrrity of more thm tkee months but less

thm twelve months

- Bank deposits with original mtuity of more thm 12 months

Less : Amout Disclosed mder the head Othor Non Curent Assets (refer note 7)

Less : Amomt Disclosed rnder the head Other Fimcial Assets (refer note 13)

Total

2,7'72.0',7 958,00

3s.7015.4/

1,647,65

85.07

13.23

0.24

2,785.49 991,94 r,745.95
0.00

(60.85) (44 12) (137.81)

2,724.64 949.E2 1,606.14

55.26

t24.58
16.'73

137.81

(t3.23)

t3.23
t24.58

r4r.3l t24.58 137.81

2,623.18 1,3 18.30

1,300.00

892.48

2,623.18 8.30 E92.46

t72.44

2,595.0t
( l,126.00)
( 1,469.01)

0.50

3,119.45

(t,932.54)
(1, r86.90)

t75.55

4362.08

(2,484.47)
(1,877.61)

172.44 0.50 175.55

tDeposits momting to Rs. 172,44 Lakhs as at Milch 31,2025 (Mrch 31, 2024 Rs, .50 Lahhs md Much 31, 2023 Rs. 168.98

Lakh) re pledged against mgin money. All mrgin money deposits are either against OD limit or agairot perfomance
gmtoas from batrks.

ir(
i
?
*

(,
* ,b6^



Applied Research Intcrmtional Privste Linited
CIN: U73100DL1998PTC097280
Notcs to the Coruolidated Fitrincial Statenents
(Amouts are in INR Idca udess otheryise stated)

Psrticulars As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, April l, 2023

2025 2024

t4

l5

l6

t7

Losns

Unsecured. considered sood. ul$s otherwise stated
Loms to related party*

Lom to Staffand Others

Total

Other financial assets

Unsecured, considered good' uless otheruise stated

Interest Accrued on fixed deposits

Interest reoeivable on Lom to Subsidiuies

Interest receivable on Lom to R€lated Party

Interest Accrued on Loan to Staff
Interest on Income Tu Refimd Receivable

Deposits with remining mtuity of Less thu 12 monthst

Emest money deposits

Less:Provision for ECL
Secuity deposit

Total

Current Tax Asseh(Liability) (Net)
Advuce Payment ofTu (Net ofProvision)*

Other curent assets

Unsecured, considered good, uless otheruise strted
Prepaid expenses

Recovemble from/ balmces with govement authorities

Advmces for supp$ of goods ud services

Advmoe to Staff
Other cwent assets

Total

150.00

8. l2
2.02

L06 3.07

t58.12 3.08 3.07

tUnsecruod Lom to ARI Labs Private Limited which is repayble on demd including interest @9.85% per mrm.

tAbove Lom include due by directors or otlrcr officers ofthe
compmy or uy of them either severally or jointly witb my other
pe6oN or mouts due by fim or private compmies rcspectivoly

in which my director is a partner or a director or a member (refer

note 43)

150.00

97.80 97.39 67.96

0. l6
0.07

1,469.01

25.17

(r3.97)
46.52

0.07

l, l 86.90

24.89

20.41

1,877.61

37.97

l3.ll
t,624.76 1,996.64

rDeposits amouting to Rs. 1469.01 Laths as at Much 31, 2025 (Much 31, 2024 P.s. 1422.Q2 La.kls md Much 31, 2023 Rs.

1,866.98 Lakh) are pledged agairot mugin money. All mugin money deposits re either against OD limit or against porfomnce
gmtoas from banks.

614.85 982.14 85',t.99

Total

*lncludes the amout adjuted by tho Income Tax Department towuds the demd for the financial yeu 2016-17, which is

curently under dispute md pending adjudication before the ClT(Appeals), Delhi, agaimt hcome til reflnds receivable in

subsequent yeus.

614.85

74.39

76.44

33, l3
19.49

75.86

28t.87
67.77
t4.62

51.38

433.92

47.28
57.04

203.45 440.13 589.63

lA.
{t

C
9
*

(,
*

982.14 8s7,99



Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73100DL1998PTC097280
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at
March 31,

2025

As at
March 31,

2024

As at
April l,2023

l8 Equity share capital
Authorized share capital*
50,00,000 (March 3 l, 2024: 50,00,000 , April 1,2023:
50,00,000) equity shares ofRs. I0 each fully paid up

132.87 1s3.00 153.00

+ During the year ended March 31,2025, the Holding Company concluded the buyback of 2,01,340 equity shares (at a price of Rs. 921.60 per equity share) as
approvedbytheBoardofDirectorsonSeptember 12,2024andbyShareholdersinEGMasonl4thseptember2024.ThishasresultedinatotalcashoutflowofRs
22,86,62,'7821' (including tax on buyback of Prs.4,27,57,838/- and transaotion costs related to buyback of Rs. 3,50,000/- ). In line with the requirement of the
Companies Act, 2013, an amount of Rs.22,86,62,782l- has been utilised from retained earnings. Further, capital redemption reserve of Rs. 2O,l3,4OO (representing
the nominal value of the shares bought back) has been created as an apportionment from retained earnings. Consequent to such buybaok, the issued and paid-up
equity share capital has reduced by Rs. 20,13,400.

18.1 The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of divi4ends and the repayment of
capital:

i) The Holding Company has only one class ofequity shares having a par value ofRs.l0 per share. Each holder ofequity shares is entitled to one vote per share held.
The dividend proposed by the Board ofDirectors is subject to the approval ofthe shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case oflnterim
Dividend.

ii) In the event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the share holders.

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
13,28,660 (March 31, 2024: 15,30,000 and April 1, 2023
15.30,000) equity shares ofRs.l0 each fully paid up

(i) Reconciliation of num ber and amount of equity shares outstanding:
As at April 1,2023

Movement during the year

As at March 31,2024
Movement during the year

As at March 31,2025

s00 00 500.00 500.00

s00.00 s00.00 500.00

t32.87 153.00 r 53.00

No ofshare Amount
15,30,000 r53.00

153.00

r3.28.660 132.87

(fhis space is intentionally lcJi blank)
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Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73100DL1998PTC097280
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

(ii) Details of shares held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company including shares held by subsidiaries or
associates of the or the ultimate tn

*During the year ended 3lst Much,2025, Zen Technologies Limited acquired 76%o of the equity share capital of the Company through share purchase from

Promoters. Pursuant to the acquisition, control over the Company has been transfered to Zen Technologies Limited with effect from 28th February, 2025.

Details of shareholders more than 57o shares in the
As at

March 31,2025
As at

March 31,2024
As at

April 1,2023

% of holding No. of
shares held

o/o of
holding

No. of
shares held

o/o oI
holding

No. of
shares held

Equity shares of Rs. l0/- each fully paid

Zen Technologies Limited

Shravan Rewari

Amarjeet Rewari

Naomi Rewari

76.000/o

24.00%
0.00%

0.00%

10,09,782

3, I 8,878

0.00%

77.59%
0.00%

22.41o/o

I 1,87,100

3,42,900

0.00%

53.6r%
23.98%
22.4t%

8,20,200

3.66,900

3,42,900

(iii) Details of shareholding held by promoter and promoter at the end of the year.

As at
March 31,2024

As at
April 1,2023

As at
March 31 2025

Yo of
Holding

No. of
Shares
Held

Particulars

% of Holding No. of
Shares
Held

o/o oI
Holding

No, of
Shares
Held

76.00% t0,09,782 0.00% 0.00%
Equity shares ofRs. l0/- each fully paid
Zen Technologies Limited - Ultimate Holding
Company*

Particulars As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

As at
April 1,2023

7o change

during the
year March

31,2025

%o change
during the

year Msrch
31,2024

% of holding No. of
shares held

Yo of
holding

No. of
shares held

o/o ot
holding

No. of
shares held

Promoter
Zen Technologies Limited
Shravan Rewari

Amarjeet Rewari

Naomi Rewari

76.00o/o

24.00%
0.00%

0.00%

t0,09,782
3, I 8,878 77.59%

0.00%

22. to/o

l 1,87,100

3,42,900

53.6t%
23.98%
22.4loh

8,20,200

3,66,900

3,42,900

76%

-54%

0%
aao/

0%

24%

-24%
0%



Applied Research Inlernational Privato Linited
CIN: U73l00DLl99EPTC097280
Nots to the Coruolidated Fimncial St.temenh
(Amouts sre in INR Lacs unles otberuise stated)

Particulsrs As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, April l, 2023

19 Other equity

(a) General Reserve
Opening balmce
Add: Transfered from retained etrdngs duing the period/ yeu

Closiog balance

(b) Retahed eartritrg

Opening balmce
Add/ (Less): Profit/ (Lnss) for the year

Less: Buyback ofEquity Shues
(lncluding Transaction Cost md Tu
thereon)

Less: Trmfered to Capital Redemptron

Reserue

Closing balance

(c) Total Other comDrehensive income
Remeasurement of Defircd Betrefit Plan

Oponing balmce

Add(Less): Remeasuement Gair(Loss) (net oftax) for the year

Closiag balonce

Exchange Difference on Foreign operations
Oponing balmce

Add : Exchmge Gain/(Loss) for the yeu

Closiag balance

443.69 443.69 443 69

443.69 443-69 443.69

6,6t0.6'7
1,969.86

(2,266.49)

(20. l3)

6,049.47
s6t.20

5,984.59

64.88

6,293.90 6.049.47

(r22.26)
(e4.45)

(l l 1.65)

( 10.6 l)
(107. l 5)

(4.s0)

(216.70t {l22.26t (rrr.6s)

(3.67)

(20.86) (3.67)

Q4.s3) (3.67)

(d) Cspital Redemptiom Reserve
Opeohg balmce
Add: Trrufer from Retaned Emgs
Closing balance

20.13

20.13

Totrl other equity (a+b+c+d) 6516.49 6928.41 6381.51

Notes to reserves :

Generat Reseryes: General Reserye oreated out of trmfer from retained eunings.

Retained earnings: Retained eming re profit/loss that the Group has emed till date less trmsfer to other reserve, dividend or

other distribution or transaction with shareholder.

Capital Redemption Reserve: Creared on accout of BrryBaok of shres duing the cment yeu.

Totsl Other comprehensive income : Other comprehemiye inoome consists ofremeasuement gains/ (loss) on defined benefit plm
md Exchmge differences on trmslathg the finmcial statements of a foreign operation

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Applied Research Internatioml Privatc Limit€d
CIN: U73l00DLl998PTC0972E0
Notcs to the Consolidated Finsncisl Statements
(Amouts are in INR Llca uDless otheryise stated)

Psrticulars As at As Bt As at
March 31, March 31, April l, 2023

z02s 2024

20 Legse liabilities: non current
Lease liabilities (Refer note 47) 837.08 1,102.51 1,323.95

Total E37.0E I,102.5t t,323.95

2t Non current provision
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 45)

Gmtuity
Comperoated absence

Total 669-42 496.9t 432.06

Financial liabilities; current
22 Short term borrowitrgsr

Swured
- From bsnls
Overdraft faoility*
Tot$l Secured

*Term of Secuity of Overdraft Facitity md Cash Credit Facilrty fiom Banks, md Lom repayable on demd from others

Secuity Details:

Overdraft Limit I - Overdraft Limit of Rs 150.00 as at Milch 31, 2024 and of Rs.350.57 as at Much 31, 2023 (balmce bsing

Nil at boththe reporting periods) from Axis Bank is fi.rlly secured against Banks Fixed Deposits.

Overdraft Limit 2 - Overdraft Lmit of Rs 874.00 as at Milch 31, 2024 md Overdraft Limit of Rs.1,758.90 as at Milch 31,

2023 (balance being Nil at both the reporting periods) from HDFC Buk is fir.lly secured against Bmks Fixod Deposits.

Packing Credit Limit 3 - Packing Credrt Limit (sub limit of Overdraft limit) is NIL as at Mrch 31, 2024 md Packing Credit

Limit of Rs.1,000 as at Milch 31, 2023 (balmce being Nil at both the reporting periods) from HDFC Ba* is f.rlly secued

agaifft Bmks Fixed Deposits.

Overdraft Limit 4 - Overdraft Limit of Rs 750.00 as at Milch 31, 2024 md of Nil as at March 31, 2023 (balanoe being Nil at

both the reporting periods) from HSBC Bank is firlly secued agaimt Banks Fixed Deposits.

626.24

43. l8
473.I

23.80

408.08

23.98

2t

24

Lease liabilities: curent
Lease liabilities (rofcr trote 47)

Total

Trade payables*

total outstanditrg dws of miorc md small enterprises

total outstmding dues ofcrediton other thm micro and small enterprises

Total
* Refer note 40 for ageing oftrade payables

0.00 ts.22
r99 9s 441 .05

1,287.60 t99.95 456.27

265.42 287.24 3t7.25

265.42 317.25

7.28

t280.32

Particulars Sanctioned
Amout (Rs.

Interest Term As at March As at Msrch
3t,2025 31,2024

As at April I,
2023

Overdraft Limit I I 50.00 FD +2%
Overdraft Limit 2 874.00 FD +2o/o

Packinq Credrt Limit 3
Overdraft Limit 4 750.00 MCLR/3M T-bilVmy

otler exterml
benchmrk decided by

the bank and in lhe
with RBI guidelines

Total

o'I
*

€

*
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Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73t 00DLt 998PTC097280
Not6 to the CoNolidated Financial Strtemeots
(AEouts 8re h INR Lacs urless othcilis€ stated)

Particulars As at
March 31,

As at As at
Nlarch 31, April l,2023

25 Othcr

26

liebilities
Interest payablc to Micro md Smll Enterprises

Other experses payable

Employee benefi ts payable

Total

Other cBrent lisbility
Contract liabilities (advmce from culomcr)AJnemed Revenre

Stahrtory dues

Other Cmnt Liability
Total

Provision: current
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 45)

Gratuity

Compensated absenoe

Bonu

Provision for wrenties

Totrl

(Ihis spdce is intentionally left blank)

0. l4
68.9 I

643.35

247.53

2.14

0.24

l0 1.6 I

1,03 l.25
94.25

'1.39

0.47

10.53

2,333.60

lL9.t7

893.02 t,132.89 2,1s2.77

)1

73.05

4.04

1.05

4.39

76.37

7.20

2.0t

65.50

82.5t

7.33

2.03

80.50

E2.53 I 5 1.06112-38



Applied Raerch Itrtertratioral Priyrte Limited
CINr U73100DL1998PTC097280
Not6 to the Cotrslidated Firstrcisl Strtemetrts
(Amounts srg in INR Lacs url$s oth€ryise stated)

Particulars

For the yBr ended

March 31,2025
For the yBr etrded

March 31,2024

28 Revenue from operations

@
(i) Disaggregatcd rwenue ioformation

Set out below is the disaggregation ofthe Group revenue from contracts with custome$

r) Revenue from Sale ofProducts
Simulato6
Simulation Softw

b) ReYeou€ from Sale ofSeryices
Mainteroc Or Repaim Service
Erection lnstallation & Commissioning

Digital Senices e-Sim Cloud
Digital Senices e-Sim Cloud Trainers

Digital Exm Couse Fee

Muagement Consultmry Senicm Fes

8,391.55
t,84',7.27

468.80
279.09
670.09

1,009.45

196.35
249.83

3,504.39
2,644.42

566.59
800.46
563.8E

8t4.9',7

250.42

c) Other operstitrB rwenue ( Sale of Books)
Sale ofBooks

Total rwenue from cootracts with customerB

Disclosure under Ind AS ll5, revenue from contrack with customers

26.84 26.82

13,739.21 9,171.96

A) The Group primarily deats in Simulator Technology; Simulator hrdwue md softwue products md Simulatols related allied

serices including mua.l maintemce servioes. The simulator product portfolio encomposes Mrine (navigatioq propulsiorq ougo

hmdling, GMDSS); Dritting (sufrce tools md dom-hole); Offshore (mvigation, ship hmdling, fore md aft bridge operations,

dynmic positionng, mchor hmdlng); Crane (ports md teminals, vessel based" corotructio& mobile) as well as Naval, Driving and

CNtom Simulators. ARI simu.lator systems re powered by thet latest visualization engine, providing mprrcedented realim in
enviroment, physics, fluid dymics md hydrodynmios. Further si!@ the Grcup attempts to ue a uified simulation system, all of
their products cs intemct wit! one mother to create uiquely powerful and compelling simulatiom of real world rcllaborative

operations.

B) Group's activities in mtrine technology sector includes mnduting fomal taining couses for Upgadation of skills for muine
persomel.

C) The Group is providing Online/Cloud Basd Simulation remote traidng session. Simulation Content md interactivrty offered

tluough the cloud ue proprietary md contain copyrighted material.ARl delivembles is ued by tho Cutomer for the intended

purpose of trainng its om authorired uers only.

B) Reonciliation ofcotrtract a$etr and liabilitiq

D) The folloring trble prcvide informstion abort contract asset aod coniract liabilitis frem @ntract with cultomen;

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31. 2025 March 31. 2024

Cotrtract assets*

Unbilled rEeivabls
Contract assets at the begiming of the yeu
Add: Addition duing the yer
Less: Revenue lmognised duing the yea

Cortrscl .sets as st erd ofthc yesr

Cortract liabilitiB**
Advarce from cuslomers
Contrrct tiabilities at lhe begiming of the yer
Add: Addition dwuE thc yes
Less: Applied duing the yeu

35.70

t3.42
(3s.70)

85.07

35.',?0

(85.07)

t3.42 35.70

643.35
(1,03 l.2s)

Contract liabilitie a! et etrd of the ysr 643.3s 1,031.25

*The oontract assets primuily relate to the Group's rights to consideration for performmce obligation satisfied but oot billed at the

reporting date. The contract ass€ts r€ trmfered to receivables when the rights become mconditional. Invoices re raised on the

cutomers based on the agred contrachul terms.

**The cont act liabilities primuily relates to the advmces from cutomer towfds on-goining projects. Revenue is recognised from

the @ntract liability N md when such performmce obligatioos re satisfied.

t,031.25 2,333.60

1,031.25
(2,333.60)



Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73 100DL1998PTC097280
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended

March 31,2025
For the year ended

March 31,2024

29 Other income

Interest income on
Bank Deposits

From others

Other non-operatins income
Gain on Foreign Exchange
Equipment Rental Sales

Profit on sale ofproperty, plant and equipments

Unwinding of discount on Security deposit

Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back

Reversal of Warrenty provision
Reversal ofExpected Credit Loss

Total

30 Cost of material consumed

Opening stock

Purchases

Less: Closing stock

Total

3l Operating Expenses

Consumption of stores and spares

Power and fuel
Technical and professional fees

Software Expenses

Repairs and maintenance-Equipment and Computers

STPI Fees

Freight and forwarding charges

Insurance Transit

Total

32 Changes in inventories offinished goods, work-in progress and traded goods

Inventories at the beginning ofthe year

Work-in progress

Less: Inventories at the end ofthe year

Work-in progress

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in progress and traded goods

2t2.91
37.08

46.91

286.04
0.84

0.31

49.72

80.46

1.97

0.34
2.29

73.90

3.76

2,466.32

15.87

)4?
I,3 I 8.39

3.76

24s4.21 r317.0s

2.9t
63.77

834.78
108.41

10.49

2.s0
75.62

4.34

1.89

64.73

738.39

98.53

24.42
2.25

40.81

6.50

rr02.83 977.s2

69.05

69.05 315.81

62.35 69.05

62.35 69.05

PAt. i.1I A
\+-

o C
9,
**

6.70 246.76

375.40 4L7.37

3r5.8r



Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73 I00DL[998PTC0972E0
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars tr'or the year ended

March 31,2025
For the year ended

March 31,2024

33 Employee benelits expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus
Gratuity expenses

Contribution to provident and other funds

Provision for compensated absence

Staffwelfare expenses

Insurance Travel - Staff

Total

33.1 Research & development Expenses

Revenue Expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus (Included in note no. 33)

Capital Expenses

Computers (Note no. 3)

Equipments (Note no. 3)

34 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation on right ofuse assets

Total

35 Finance cost

Other borrowing cost:

Bank Guarantee Charges

lnterest on :
Lease Liability
Working capital loan

Late payment of statutory dues

Term Loan

Other Interest

Total

PAD
,P

4,665.38
83.80
88.1 I

8.90
3.42
0.66

3,350.37
74.48
67.24

6.50
3.56
0.82

4,850.27 3,502.98

878.30 838.45

Total (A) 878.30 838.45

t34.70
5.1010.16

Total (B) 10.16 139.80

The R&D Centre of the Holding Company is located at New Delhi operational since 2016. Pursuant to its recognition and approval

with Department of Scientific and Industrial Research (DSIR) same had received recognition for the period 26lhOcl 2016 to 31st

March 2019 which was further renewed upto 3lst March 2022.Even during the current year Holding Company has maintained

separate accounts for R&D Centre. For current year Holding Company is claiming 100% deduction of aforesaid R&D expenses both

revenueandcapitalunderSection35(lXDandSection35(lXiv)ofthelncome-taxAct,1961.

198.93

50.03

328.43

298.20

50.28
328.43

577.39 676.92

8.31

t22.90
1.64

1.50

0.03

0. l4

149.46

fi.52

1.73

oI
*

o
* NO,DA

Ac

L34.52 t62.7L



Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73100DL1998PTC097280
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

36 Other expenses

Tender Expenses

Bank and finance charges

AMC Expense

Repairs and maintenance-Buildings
Repairs and maintenance-Others
Communication costs

Exchange differences (net)
Rent

Rates and taxes

Festival Expenses

Allowance / (reversal) for expected credit loss on receivables
General Expenses

House Keeping
Postage/Courier charges

Insurance expenses

Loss on sale of Property,plant and equipment
Telephone & Internet Expenses

Subscription & Membership fees

Security Expense

Travelling & conveyance
Legal and professional expenses

Petrol & Diesel
Payment to auditor
Corporate Social Responsibility
Vehicle Running & Maintenance Charges

Exhibition expenses

Business Promotion

Student Fooding & Welfare Expenses
Other Course Expenses

Printing and stationery
Provision for warranties

Bad Debts Wriuen off
Royalty ( On Textbooks)

Newspaper, Books & Periodicals
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

0.28

226s32 \890.63

1.47

18. I7
32.02

8.80
5.92
6.02

21.44

t4.17
16.10

30.70

4t.s4
s.88

7.57

38.76

3.26
21.45

25.82

67.3r
25.84

7.26
t9.93
16.82

60.16
18.08

386.60

3.s4

8.91

264.63

1,056.56

8.66

22.40

7.00

3.63

22.20

t7.34
44.28

15.06

5.29

t34.44
t4.46

39.17

6.45
4.83

38.46
177.64

333.22

9.02

3.52
270.00

388.08

9.19
26.40

4.45
22.65

23.28
29.04

7.80

26.23

17.68

187.30

(9 c,\I
**

PAD

2.15



Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73 l00DL[99EPTC097280
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

37 Earnings per share (EPS) computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 "Earnings Per Share"
The is a reconciliation ofthe shares used in the ofbasic and diluted

(This space is intentionally left blank)

Co

share:

For the year ended

March 31 2024

o
*

Particulars
f,'or the year ended

March 31,2025
Net profit for the year

Number of equity share at the beginning of the year

Add: BuyBack during the year

Add: Bonus issue

Add: Impact of share split (Refer Note (ii) below)
Number ofequity share at the end ofthe year

Weighted average number of equify shares outstanding during the year- Basic

Weighted average number of equity shares arising out of grant of employee stock

Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of share

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year- Diluted
Face value of equity shares (Rs. per share)

Earning per share (Basic) (Rs.)

Earning per share (Diluted) (Rs.)

1,969.86

15,30,000
(2,01,340)

13,28,660

14,24,090

14,24,090
l0

t38.32

138.32

s61.21

15,30,000

15,30,000

15,30,000

15,30,000

l0

36.68
36.68

P

*



Applied Research latermtioral Private LiDitGd
CIN: U73l00DLl998PTC0972E0
Not€s to thc CoNolidated Financial Statements
(Amounh arc itr INR Loca unlers otheNise strted)

3E Capital and other commitmetrts

The Group does not have my capital or other comitmeot as at Much 3 I , 2025 .

39 Contingent Liabilities

Particulars As at
March 31,

2025

As at
March 31,

2024

As at
Apdl l,2023

Income Tax matterst 625.48 625.48 641.05

* l. Represeots m income tu demd in ilsessment proc@dings for Fy 2016-17 cotrsistitrg of Prhcipal Tu Demd of Rs. 424.86 Plus Itrterest Rs. 196.03, a[ totalling to Rs. 620.90
out of which Tu Paid on Protest totalling to Rs. 124.t8/-. The illegal disallowmces so made in tho couse of ffisessment proeedings havo b€en contested in Appeal before
juisdictional ClT(Appeals), Delhi md also a Rectification Application rude for short oredit of tues etc., all of which remain ponding disposal so fil. The til demild agahst

of operatiotrs. The subsequent yeils til refutrds with itrterest have beetr adjusted against said delmds.

of dividend (DDT) of Rs.3.12 ild crcated a demd for the sme with interest of Rs.l.46 totalhg to Rs.4,58 md adjusted the sffie agiust the refind of Income-tu receivable for AY
2018-19. The Cnoup has decided to challmge the aforesaid Order for not allowitrg credit of DDT, which was duly paid. The Group h6 contested the same in Appeal before
Juisdictional CIT (Appeal), Dethi.

40 Trade payable agciag

Trade schedulc as at March 2025 is as follows:-

Trade schedule as at March 2024 is as followsr

Particulars
Ouhtandins for following oeriods frou the due datc of Dayment*

TotalNot Due Less thatr I
vear

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
vears

(i) MSME
(ii) Others

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disouted dues - others

199.95 t99.9s

199.95 199.95

P$ticulars
Outstatrditrs for followins oeriods from th€ due date of Dayment*

TotslNot Due Less thau I
Year

l-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
vears

(i) MSME
(ii) Others
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - others

t4.67
415.0E

0.55

25.76 0.2t
t5.22

441.05

Total 429.75 26.31 0.2t 456.27

PAi],

.€

*

n
Cto

*

Particrdsrs
Outstanditrg for followins Deriods from the du€ date of Daym€nt*

TotalNot Due Less than I
vear

l-2 yean 2-3 years More than 3
years

(i) MSME
(ii) Othors
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - others

7.28

t,280.32
7.28

1,280.32

TotEl r.287.60 r287.60



Appli€d R$e8rch Intcrn tional Private Limited
CIN: U73100DL1998PTC097280
Not€r to the Consolidated Finrncirl Ststometrts
(Amouts rrc itr IflR Lsc! utrless otheNise stated)

4l Trade receivable ageing

(ii) Trade reccivablc sgeirg schedule ss at March 31, 2025 is as followsr

(ii) Trade reeivable ageing schcdule as st March 3l' 2024 is as follows:-

(iii) Trade reccivable ageing schedule as at April l' 2023 is as follows:-

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from the date oftranraction Total

Not Due Lcss than 6
montbs

6 months- I
year

l-2 yerrs 2-3 years More than 3

years

(i) tjndisouted trade reeivables - considered sood 2.483.61 t65.57 66.05 45.74 I l.l0 2.772.07
(ii) Undisputed trade receivables - which have significmt hcreas

in credit risk

(iii) UndisDuted Trade Receivables - uedit impaired
(iv) Disouted trade reeivables - considered sood
(v) Disputed trade receivables - which have signifiomt inoreaso in

credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Rrceivables - credit impaired
Total aceinc of rcceivablcs 2.483.6r 165.57 66.0s 45.74 ll.l0 2.772.07
Add: Unbilled revenue t3.42
lEss: Allowuces for €xp€cted credit losses (60.8s)

Total trade receivable 2.483.6r to!.! / 66.05 45.74 ll.l0 2,724.64

Particulils

Outstanding for following periods from the dste of transaction

TotslNot Due Lesr thatr 6
months

6 months- I
year

l-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

years

(i) Undisouted trade receivables - considered good 632.96 77.08 t'73.96 74.24 9s8.24

(ii) Undisputed trade rereivables - which have significmt inoreasa

in crodit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivablos - credit impaired
(iv) Disputed rade reeivables - considered good

(v) Disputed trade receivables - which have significant increase in
oredil risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Rmeivables - credit impailed
Total agehg of r€ceivables 632.96 77.08 173.96 74.24 958.24

Add: Unbilled revenw 35.70

Less: Allowmces for expected credit losses (44.t2\

Total trade reccivable 632.96 77,08 173.96 74.24 949.82

Particulars

Outstandius for following pcriods from th€ dat€ of transaction

Total

Not Duc Lcss lhan 6

months
6 months- I

year
l-2 years 2-3 yean More than 3

yean

(i) Undisputed trade receivables - coasidered good l.139.87 236.42 77.57 t76.47 17.32 1.647.65

(ii) Undisputed trade reooivables - which have significilt increffe
in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 13.23 I J,ZJ
(ivI Disnuted trade remivables - considered eood
(v) Disputed trade rmeivables - which have significmt increce in

credit ilsk
(vi) DisDuted Trade Rmeivables - credit imoaired
Total sceins of receiYables I,139.87 236.42 17.57 t76.47 30.55 r,660.88

Add: Unbilled revenue 85.07

l€ss: Allowc6 for exo€cted credit losses ( 137.8 l )

Total trade receivables I,139.87 236.42 11.57 t76.47 30.ss r.608.14

o
*

,A

*



Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73l ffi DLI 998PTC097280
Notes to the Consolidsted Financiol Statements
(Amounts are in INR Ircs unless otherwise stated)

42 FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS

42,1 Classification Of Measurements of Financial Instruments

Methods & essumptions used to estimate the fair values
The fair values ofthe financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
pa(ies, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(a) The carying amounts ofreceivables and payables which are short term in nalure such as trade receivables, security deposits given, loans given to retated parties

and others, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, security deposits taken, other current financial assets, short- term borrowings, trade payables,
payables for acquisition ofnon- current assets and other current financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values.

(b) The fair values for long term borrowings and lease liabilities were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as

level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion ofunobservable inputs.

(c) For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

At)
€

(,
*

C
?
*

Acc

As at March 31,2025 FVTPL FvTOCI Amortised cost Total

2,623.18

r72.44

2,724.64

2,794.6t

167.09

2,623.t8
172.44

2,724.64

2,794.61

t67.09

8,481.96 8,481.96

A.

B.

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than above

Trade receivables

Other financial assets

Loans

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liabilities
Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilities

Total

1,r03

1,287.60

634.08

I,102.5 I

1,287.60

634.08

Total 3,024.19 3,024.19

As at March 31, 2024 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total

A.

B.

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than above

Trade receivables

Other financial assets

Loans

Total

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liabilities
Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilities

2,618.30

0.s0

949.82

3,363.84

3.08

2,618.30

0. s0

949.82

3,363.84

3.08

6.93s.s4 6.93s.s4

1,390

199.95

408.88

t,389.74

199.95

408.88

Total 1,998.58 r,998.s8



Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73l00DLl 998PTC097280

Notes to the Consolidated Fin.ncial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

As at April l,2023 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total

A.

B.

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than above

Trade receivables

Other financial current assets

Loans

Total

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liabilities
Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilities

892.48

175.55

1,608. l4
4,542.57

3.07

892.48

175.55

1,608. l4
4,542.57

3.07

7,221,80 7,221.80

t,641
456.27

283.59

1,641.20

456.27

283.59

Total 2J8r.06 2,381.06

Fair value hierarchy:
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value offinancial instruments by valuation technique:

Level l: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or tiabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data

For assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value as at balance sheet date, the classification of fair value calculations by category is summarised

below:

Particulars Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at March 31,2025
Financial Assets measured 8t FVTPL
Investments

Equity instruments

As at March 31,2024
Financial Assets measured at FVTPL
Investments

Equity instruments

As at March 31,2023
Financial Assets measured at FVTPL
Investments

Equity instruments

There were no transt'ers between Level l, Level 2 or Level 3 for the period ended March 3 1, 2025, March 3 l, 2024 and April 1,2023.

Fair value of measured at amortised cost

'AD

o
*

Particulars As at March 3l' 2025 As at March 31,2024 As at a Anril 1.2023

Carrying Cost Fair value Carryins Cost Fair value Carrvine Cost Fair value

A

B

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than above

Trade receivables

Other financial assets

Loans

tr'inancial Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables

Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities

2,623.18
172.44

2,724.64

2,794.6t

167.09

2,623.18

172.44

2,724.64

2,794.61

167.09

2,618.30
050

949.82

3,363.84

3.08

2,618.30
0.50

949.82

3,363.84

3.08

892.48

175.55

1,608. r4
4,542.57

3.07

892.48
r75.55

1,608. 14

4,s42.57

3.07

8,481.96 8,481,96 6,935.54 6,935.s4 1.221.80 7,221.80

1,287.60

1,102.5 I

634.08

|,287 60

1,1 02.5 1

634.08

199 95

1,389.74

408.88

199.95

1,389.74

408.88

456.27

t,641.20

283.59

456.27

t,64t.20
283.s9

3,024.19 3,024.19 1,998.s8 1,998.s8 2,381.06 2,381.06

NO
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42.2 Financial Risk Management
The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) being the Board of Directors @oard) has overall responsibility for the eslablishment and oversight of the Group risk

management fiamework. The Board ofDirectors regularly reviews the changes in the market conditions, management policies and procedures and the adequacy of
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The framework seeks to identiry, assess and mitigate financial risk in order to minimize

potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk; and

- Market risk

l) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk offinancial loss to the Group ifa customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet i1s contractual obligation, and arises from the

operating activities primarily (trade receivables) and investing activities including deposits, loans to related parties or others, and other financial assets, The Group

establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of financial assets. A default of financial assets is when there is a

significant increase in the credit risk which is evaluated based on the business environment. The assets are written off when the Group is certain about the non-

,ecovery.

(i) Investment in Loans given, Cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank balances:

The Group provides for expected credit loss based on lifetime expected credrt loss mechanism for Loans given.

Credit fusk from investment in Cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank balances are managed as per Group's policy. The credit risk for cash deposits with banks

and cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Also, no impairment loss

has been recorded in respect offixed deposits that are with recognized commercial banks and are not past due. The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents

and other bank balances have low credit risk.

Other financial assets being security deposits and others are also due from several counter parties and based on historical informalion about defaults from the counter

parties, management considers the quality ofsuch assets that are not past due to be good.The carrying amounts disclosed above are the Group's maximum possible

credit risk exposure in relation to these deposits.

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other financial instruments has been measured on the l2-month expected credit loss basis and reflects the

short maturilies ofthe exposures. Based on the assessment there is no impairment in the cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank balances.

The exposure to credit risk for above financial assets as at the reporting dates was as follows:

March 2025

Particulars Gross carrying f,xpected credit Carrying amount

Cash & cash equivalents 2,623.18 2,623.18

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 172.44 172.44

Other financial assets 2,808.57 ( l 3.e7) 2,822 54

Loans t67.09 167.09

Investments

Total 5,771.29 (t3.e7) 5,785.25

March 2024

Particulars Gross carrying f,xpected credit Carrying amount

Cash & cash equivalents 2,618.30 2,618.30

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 0.s0 0. s0

Other financial assets 3,363.84 3,363.84

Loans 3.08 3.08

Investments

Total 5,985.72 5,985,72

2023

Particulars Gross carrying
amount

Expected credit
losses

Carrying amount
net of impairment

provision

Cash & cash equivalents 892.48 892.48

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents I 75.55 175.55

Other flnancial assets 4,542.57 4,542 57

Loans 3.07 3.07

Investments

Total s,6r3.66 s.6r3.66
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(ii) Trade Receivables:

Customer credit risk is managed based on Group's established policy, procedures and controls. The Group assesses the credit quality ofthe counterparties, taliing into

account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

Credit risk is reduoed by receiving pre-payments. The Group has a well defined sales policy to minimize its risk of credit defaults. The outstanding customer

receivables are regularly monitored and assessed. Impairment analysis is performed based on historical data at each repodng date. However a large number ofminor
receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for imparrment collectively.

Expected credit loss under simplified approach for trade receivables:

As at March 31,2025 rss Carrying Amount Expected Loss Rate Expected Credit Carrying amount
Loss of trade

receivables (net

of impairment)

Ageing ofgross carrying amount
Not Due

Unbilled revenue

less than I Year

l-2 years past due

2-3 years past due

More than 3 years past due

13.42

2,649.t8

0.00%
0.00Yo

0.95%
16.6s%
29.61%

100.00%

25.2L

11.00

L3.54

11.10

t3.42
2,623.97

55.05

32.20
66.0s
45.74

I l.l0
Net carrying amount 2,78s.49 60.8s 2,724.64

As at March 31,2024 Gross Carrying Expected Loss Rate
Amount

Expected Credit Carrying amount
Loss of trade

receivables (net
of impairment)

Ageing of gross carrying amount
Not Due

Unbilled revenue

less than I Year

l-2 years past due

2-3 years past due

More than 3 years Dast due

35.70

710.04
173.96

74.24

0.00%

0.00%
2.64%

|.11%
8.11%
0.00%

t8.77
19.32

6.02

35.70

691.26

154.64

68.22

Net carrvins amount 993.94 44.72 949,82

As at March 31,2023 rss Carrying Amount Expected Loss Rate Expected Credit Carrying amount
Loss of trade

receivables (net
of impairment)

Ageing of gross carrying amount
Not Due

Unbilled revenue

less than I Year

l-2 years past due

2-3 years past due

More than 3 years past due

85.07

1,376.29

77.57

176.47

30.55

0 00%

O.lOYo

2.78%
44.00%

t9.79%
100.00%

38.21

34.13

34.92

30.55

8s.07

1,338.08

43.44

t41.55

Net carrvine amount 1,745,95 I 37.81 r.608.r4
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2) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligatrons associated with its financial liabilities that aro proposed to be settled by
delivering cash or other financial asset. The Group's financial planning has ensured, as far as possible, that there is sufficient liquidity to meet the tiabilities whenever
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.
The Group regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has suffrcient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs. Any short-term surplus cash
generated, over and above the amount required for workrng capital management and other operational requirements, is retained as cash and cash equivalents (to the
extent required) and any excess is invested in interest bearing term deposits with appropriate maturities to optimise the cash returns on investments while ensuring
suflicient liquidity to meet its liabilities.

Maturities profile of financial liabilities
The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturitles of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted

f.css lhqn I veqr M0re than 5 Years Total
As at March 31,2025

Borrowings

Lease liabilities
Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilities
Totfll

As at March 31,2024
Borowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Total

As at April l,2023
Borrowings

Lease liabilities
Trade payables

Other fi nancial tiabilities
TotBl

423.04 847 24 I,270.28
1,287.60 1,287.60

634 08 634.08

2,344.72 847.24 3,1 91.96

410. l3 1,270.28 1,680.41

199.95 199.95

408.88 408.88

1,018.97 1,270.28 2,289.2s

221.30 1,680.41 1,901.7l
4s6.27 4s6.27
283.59 283.59

961.16 1.680.4r 2.641.57

Financing arrangements
The Grooup pays special attention to the net operating working capital invested in the business. In this regard, as in previous years, considerable work has been
performed to control and reduce collection periods for trade and other receivables, as well as to optimise accounts payable with the support ofbanking arrangements

to mobilise funds.

(,
*

P

*
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3) Market risk
Market risk is the risk ofloss offuture earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as interest
rates, foreign currency exchange rates) or in the price ofmarket risk-sensitive instruments as a result ofsuch adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk
is attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments, all foreign cunency receivables and payables and all short term and long term debt. The Group is
exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value ofits investments. Thus, the Group's exposure to market

risk is a function ofinvesting and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currencies.

a) Currency risk
The Group is exposed lo currency risk on account ofits operating activities. The functional currency ofthe Group is Indian Rupee.

Sensitivity analysis
A 5% strenglhening / wealiening ofthe respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currency ofthe Group would result in increase or decrease in profit or
loss and equity as shown in table below. This analysis assumes that al[ other variables, in pa(icular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact offorecast
sales and purchases. The following analysis has been worked out based on the exposures as ofthe date ofstatements offinancial position.

Impact on Profit or Loss and Other equity As at March 31, As at Morch 31, As at April l,2023
202s 2024

- in USD
5olo Increase

5olo Decreass

- in EURO

5olo lncrease

5olo Decrease

- in GBP
5% Increase

5olo Decrease

71.34
(71.34)

0.s9
(0.se)

15.91

( 15.91)

3.17
(3.t7)

42.9t
(42.et)

2.86
(2 86)

232
(2 32)

16.83

(16.83)

- in SGD

5olo Increase

5% Decrease

12.79

(12.7e)

- in KRW
5olo lncrease

5olo Decrease

0.72

(0.33) (0.72) (0.48)

b) Price Risk
The Group is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investment. The price risk arises due to uncertainties about the future market values ofthese investments. The

Group has laid policies and guidelines which it adheres to in order to minimise price risk arising from investments. However as at year end Group did not have any

such investments.

Particulars For the year ended

March 31,2025 March3l,2024 As at April 1,202J

0480.33

Investments

Total

Sensitivity analysis
Impact on profit or loss and other equity
102 Increase in price profit and loss

10lo Decrease in price profit and loss

Sensitivity analysis
1olo Increase in price

lolo Decrease in price
equity net oftax
equity net oftax

o
*

,AO

*

18.78

(1 8.78)
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c) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to the potential for changes in market interest rates to cause fluctuations in the fair value or future cash flows ofa financial instrument. The

Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates bo[owings from banks and financial institutions. However as at year end Group did not have any

outstanding borrowings

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 3l'
2025 2rJ24 2023

Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate borrowinss
Particulars For the Year ended

March 31,2025 March 31. 2024 As at Anril 1. 2023

Impact on profit or loss and other equity
Variable-rate instruments

I o/o increase

1 
o/o decrease

The risk estimates provided assume a change of l% interest rate for the interest rate benchmark as applicable to the borrowings summarised above. This

calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period

end balances are not necessarily representative ofthe average debt outstanding during the period

4m ecr,!!e!qc!sre!qg4

The Group policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development ofthe business.

The primary objective ofthe Group capital management strategy is to maximise shareholder value. The Group manages its capital, making adjustments as necessary

in response to changing economic and market conditions.

In alignment with industry practices, the Group monitors its capital structue using the followrng gearing ratio
. Net Debt: Defined as total borrowings and lease liabilities, net ofcash and cash equivalents (ctassified under financial liabilities in accordance with Ind AS

109).
. Total Equity: Including equity attributabte to the shareholders ofthe parent and non-controlling interests as presented in the balance sheet,

. Gearing Ratio: Defined as net debt divided by total capital (sum ofnet debt and equity).

The Group confirms that during the reported period, there have been no breaches ofthe tinancial covenants associated with any interest-bearing loans and

borrowings.

Particulars As at March 3I, As at March 31, As at April l' 2023
20242025

Borrowings (non current)

Borrowings (current)

Less: cash and cash equivalents

Net debt (A)
Total equity (B)

Capital and net debt(C=A+B)

6,649.36

6,649.36

7 ,081.43
7.08r.43

6,534.5 I

6,s34.5t

Gearins ratio A/C 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

PAc

€\
oI
*

o
*
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4l Related party disclosures, as required by Indian Accounting Standard 2,1 (Ind AS 24) are given below

A) t,ist ofRelated Parrics with Relationship

Llltimate llolding Company Zen TechnoloSies Limited

Su bsidia rits Applied Research Intemational USA lnc., USA
Applied Research Intemational (UK) Ltd, UK

ARI(Applied Research Intemational) Pte. Ltd.

Fellow Subsidiaries

Joint Venture

Key managemctrt personncl

Enrifics over which key
managcrial pcrson or their

ARI Labs Private Linrited

KIC SOLUTIONS CO.. LTD. South Korea

Digitally Enabled Spaces Pvt l,td
Capt S S S Rewan ARI Charitablc Trust

Particulars Designation Date of Appointment
Mr Slrravan Rewari \lanaging Director w.e.f., 02.1 2- I 998 upro 28-02-2025

Non Executive Director w.e.f.,28-02-2025

Mrs. Naomi Rewari Whole Time Director Ceased w.e.t., 28-02-2025

Mrs. Anrarieet Rewari Whole Time Director Ceased w.e f., 28-02-2025

Mr. .{shok Atluri Director w.e f., 28-02-2025

Mr. Saniay Kunrar Director w.e.i, 28-02-2025

Mrs Sirisha Chintapalli Independent Director w.e.f., l9-03-2025
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B) Related Party Related Party Transactions
The foltowing transactions were caried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business,

In The Books of Research International Private Limited
For the year

ended March 31,
2025

For the year
ended March 31,

2024

For the year ended

April l,2023S,No, Particulars Nature ofTransaction

239.49 239.49 239.49Rent Paid

Remuneration paid 467.50 150.00 150.00

Closing Balances:
Trade Payables 2t.55

I Mr. Shravan Rewari

2.81Royatty ofPublishing book Paid 6 51

1.80 180Rent Paid
36.00Remuneration paid 288.00 36.00

Closins Balances:
2.53

2 Mrs. Amarjeet Rewari

Royalty payable

302.98 60.00 60.00Remuneration paid

Professional Charged Paid 0.25

Closinq Balances:
Other receivables

J Mrs. Naomi Rewari

Other payables

156.61 t4'7.46 147.46Rent Paid

Closing Balances:
Trade Payables 15.26

4 Digitatly Enabled Spaces Prt Ltd

15.66lnvestment in Equity Shares

Closing Balances:
Investment 6.56 14.41 9.61

5 KIC Solutions Co. Ltd.

loan Given 150.00

016Interest Accrued on Loan

Closing Balances:
0. l6Interest Accrued on Loan

lnans and advances 150.00

6 ARI labs Private Limited

CSR Contribution 7.00

Closing Balances:
7

Capt.S.S.S. Rewari ARI
Charitable Trust

D1'^t

o
* DA

Accot
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preparation of Consolidated linancial statement

As at Marcb 31,2025 Net Assets i.e., total assets minus
total liabilities

Shsre itr prolit(loss) Shar8 in other comprehensive
mcome

Sbare in other comprehensive

income

Name of the entity in the Group As 7" of
Consolidated

Net Assets

Amount As%of
consolidated
profit(loss)

Amount As 7" of
consolidated

other
comprehensive

income

Amount As 7. of
consolidoted

other
comprehensive

income

Amount

Holding Company

Applied Research International Private Limited

Subsidiary Company

Applied Research Intemational USA Inc.

Applied Research Intemational (UK) Ltd
ARl(Applied Research International) fte. Ltd.

Joitrt Venture
KIC Solutions Co., Ltd
Eliminated on accout of consolidation

103.39%

0.260/o

0.16%
-2.6t%

0.00o/o

-t.19%

6,814.54

17.31

10.64

(r 73.68)

(79.4s',1

93.75%

l.53Yo

0.00%

5.t2%

-0.40o/o

0.00%

|,846.74

30.05
(0.03)

100 94

(7 85)

0.00

100 00%

0.00%
0.000h

0.00%

0.00%

(r ls 3l) 9336%

1.620/o

0.00%
5.44%

-0.42%

0.00%

1,73t.43

30.05
(0.03)

100.94

(7.85)

0.00

Totsl as per Consolidated Financirl Statemen 100.00% 6,649.36 r00.00% 1,969.86 r00.00% -l 15.31 r00.00% 1,854.55

As at March 31, 2024 Net Assets i.e., totrl assets minus
total liabilities

Share in profit(loss) Share in other comprehensive
lnc0me

Share in other comprehensive

income

Name of the entity in th Group As 7o of
consolidated

net rssets

Amount As%of
consolidated
profit(loss)

Amount As 7. of
consolidated

other
comprehensive

income

Amount As 7. of
consolidated

other
comprehensive

income

Amount

Holding Company
Applied Researoh International Private Limited

Subsidiary Company
Applied Research Internationa.l USA Inc.

Applied Research International (UK) Ltd
ARl(fuplied Research International) fte. Ltd.

Joint Venture

KIC Solutions Co., Ltd

Eliminated on account of consolidation

t04.62%

-0.20%
0.14o/o

-3.55%

0.00%

-1.01%

7,408.87

( 14.51)

10.1 8

(25 1.50)

(71.61)

t39.84%

4.33%
4.06%

4s.04%

0.94o/o

0.00%

'784.77

24.28
(0 3s)

{2s2.77)

s.26

74.29%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

-5.1 lo/o

0.00o/o

( 10.6 r)

0.82

t41.55%

4.44o/o

4.06%
46.22%

1 .l to/o

0.00%

77 4.t6

24.28
(0.3s)

(2s2.77)

6.08

Total as per Consolidated Finrncial
Statement

100.00% 7,081.43 100.00% 561.20 68.s8% -14.28 100,82% 546,92
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AD
€

(9
*

Share in profrt/(loss) Share in other compreheusive Share in Total comprehensive

tncome rncome

*

As at April l, 2023 Net Assets i.e,, total assets minus
total liabilities

Name of the entity ir th Group As 7" of
consolidated

net sssets

Amount As 7o of
consolidated

profit/0oss)

Amount As 7o of
consolidated

other

compr€hensive

income

Amount As 7o of
consolidated

other

comprehensive

income

Amount

Holding Company
Applied Research International Private Limit€d

Subsidiary Company
Applied Research International USA Inc.

Applied Researoh International (UK) Ltd

ARl(Applied Research International) Pte. Ltd.

Joint Venturc
KIC Solutions Co., Ltd

Eliminated on account of consolidation

101.53%

4.57%

0.160/o

0.05o/o

0.00%

-1.t7%

6,634;t t

(37.33)

10. l9

3.36

(76.4t

47 .24o/o

6437%

t.5t%

-3.77%

-9.34o/o

4.02%

30.65

4t.77

0.98

(2.4s)

(6 06)
(0.01)

100% (4 s0) 43.30%

69.t6%

1.620/o

4.05%

-10.03%

26.15

4t,77

0.98

(2.4s)

(6.06)

Total as per Consolidated Financial
Statement

100.00% 6,534.51 r00.00% 64.88 100.00% (4.s0) 100.00% 60.39
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45 Post employment benefit plans: The Group has the following defined benefit plans.

Gratuity: In accordance with the applicable laws, the Holding Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ("The Gratuity Plan") covering

eligible employees. The gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment

that are based on last drawn salary and tenure of employment. Liabilities with regard to the gratuity plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the reporting

date.

Particulars
March 31.2025

As at
March 31.2024

As at

I. Change in present value of obligation
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of the obligation at the beginning of the year
Benefits paid

Current service cost

Past service cost
lnterest cost

Actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in OCI

Present value of the obligation at the end of the year

Reconciliation of (net assets)/liablity recognised
Provision for gratuity recognised as per actuarial valuation report

Add: Additional provision retained for employees transferred within the Group

Add: Additional provision on account of terminal benefits done under arithmetic calculation

Liabilify/ (assets) recognised in the balance sheet

II. Amount recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under Employee Benefits Expense

555.63
(63.24)
43.52

40.28

t23,10
699.29

699.29

699.29

484.45
(2e.40)

38.15

36.33
26.10

555.63

555.63

555.63

(i) Exoense recosnised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

Current servioe cost

Interest cost

Reconciliation of (net assets)/liablity recognised

Provision for gratuity recognised as per actuarial valuation report

Add: Additional provision retained for employees transferred within the Group

Add: Additional provision on account ofterminal benefits done under arithmetic calculation

Liability/ (assets) recognised in the Consolidated Statement ofprofit and loss account

(ii) Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income
of other comprehensive income

43.52

40.28

38.15

36.33

83.80

83.80

74.48

74.48

ExDense recognised in the
Particulars

March 31. March 3t.2024
As at
2025

As at

Acturial gain/(loss) on obligation for the period t23.t0 26.t0

PAD,

NO'DA

k
o
*1

*

)



(iii) Actuarial assumptions for Holding Company and its subsidaries in India:
Particulers As at

March 31,2025
As at

March 31,2024
Discount rate

Salary escalation

Mortality
Weighted averoge duration of the projected benelit obligation

(iv) Sensitivity analysis

6.75o/o

5.00%

TALM2OL2-14

l6

7.25o/o

5.00%

LALM2Qt2-t4
15.00

Particulars As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

Discount rate (100 basis point movement)

Salary escalation rate (l 00 basis point movement)

Withdrawl rate (100 basis point movement)

(v) Maturity profile of defined benefrt obligation

Decrease

768.39

637.98

690.30

Increase
639.46

768.94

707.32

Decrease

605.57

516.63

546.87

Increase
512.39

600.s3

563.47

Particulars As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

Within next 12 months

Between I year to 5 years

Above 5 years
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73.0s

84.90

541.34

82.51

91.15

381 .97



Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73 100DLl 998PTC097280

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

46 A. Basis for segmentation
The Group has only one business segrnent i.e. simulation products and technology, identified taking into account the similar nature of its
products & services, risks & returns, organisational structure and internal reporting system, considered as primary segment. Therefore, being

only business segment disclosure for primary segment has not been made. The secondary segment identified is based on operations in two

geographical areas viz. With in India (being the reporting enterprise) and Outside India (being WOSG) and JV). The secondary segment

information is as under:

B. Geographical information

Particulars For the year ended
March 31 2025 March 3l

As at
.2024

Revenue from customers

Revenue generated within India
Revenue generated outside India

Total revenue

4,664.40

9,074.88

3,927.51
5,244.45

13,739.27 9,171.96

Particulars As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

Non current assets*

Within India

Outside India

1,591.55

4.79

2,161.28
9.90

1,596.34 z,t7t.t8

C. Information about major customers
No single customer contributed ljYo or more to the Group's revenue tbr the Year ended March 3 1, 2025 and March 31. 2024 excepl u
Particulars For the year ended

March 312025
As at

March 31,2024

No . of customers

Value

I
3,557.22

I
843.00

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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*Non-current assets exclude loans, other financial assets, and deferred tax assets.



Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73100DL1998PTC097280
Notes to the Consolidated tr'inancial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

47 Lease liabilities

47.1 The following is the movement in lease liabilities

Lease liabilities As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

As at beginning of the year
Additions
Deletions
Accretion of interest

Payments

As at end of the year

Current
Non current

1,389.74 1,641.20

149.46
(400.e2)

r.l0zst t.38pJ4

265.42

837.08

287.24

1,102.51

47.2 Amount Recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2025

For the year ended

March 31,2024
Depreciation expense on right ofuse assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities
ExDense relatins to short term lease

328.43

t22.90
21.44

328.43

149.46

16.82

Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss 472.76 494.71

47.3 The following are the amount disclosed in the cash flow statements

Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

Cash outflow from leases 410.l3 417.73

Cash outflow from leases 410.13 417.73

* Refer Note 42 for maturity profiles of lease liabilities.

(This space is intentionally left blank)

PAD

*

f\
S
*

tzi.so
(4 I 0.13)



Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73100DL1 998PTC'097280

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

48 First time adoption
As stated in notes, this is the first year of Holding Company's financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the year ended up to and including the year ended

March 31, 2025,the Group has prepared its financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under the section 133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, read

together with para$aph 7 ofthe Companies [Accounts] Rules,2014 [Indian GAAP],

The accounting policies set out in note 2 of material account policies have been applied in preparing these financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025, includmg the

comparative information for the year ended March 3 1, 2024 and April 01, 2023.

In preparing and in presenting the comparative information for the year ended March 31,2024 and April 01,2023, the Group has adjusted amounts reported previously in

financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP.

This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Group in restating its financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP, and how the transition from

Indian GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Group's financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

of Balance sheet as at March 2024

Particulars As per IGAAP
March 31.2024

Reclassifications Remeasurement As per Ind AS
March3l.2024

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant & equipments 493.96 (0 00) 493.96

Intangible assets 199.90 0.00 199.90

Right ofuse 0,3 14.67) t,114.67

Investment in Associates (t4.41) 14.41

Financial assets

(i)Loan (10.0e) 10.09

(ii) Others financial assets 1,302.62 (73 L50) 2,034.12

Deferred Tax Asset 1s0 67 (r29.72) 280.39

Other non current assets fl38.l5) 138. rs

Total non current assets 2,147,15 (879,74\ (1.458.79) 4,485.68

Current assets

Inventories 72.81 (0.00) 72.81

Financial assets

(ii) Trade receivables 993.94 44.12 949.82

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 2,633.84 I 5.54 2,618.30

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 1,933.04 1,932.54 0.50

(v) Loans ll.l5 8.07 3.08

(vi) Others financial assets 114.81 (1,2t4.e1) 1,329.72

Income Tax Assets (net) 1,106 20 t24.06 982.14

Other curent assets 481. l9 4t.07 440. l3

Total current assets 7,346.98 906.36 44.12 6.396.51

Total assets 9,494.13 26.62 (1,414.68) 10.882.19

Equitv & liabilities
Eouitv
Equity share capital 1s3.00 153.00

Other equity 6,9t9.94 (8 4e) 6,928.43

Total equity 7,072.94 (8.4e) 7,081.43

Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities ( 1.102.5 l) (1.r02.s1) 1,102.51

Provisions 496.9t (0.00) 496.9t

Total non current liabilities 496.91 (r.102.s1) (r,102.51) \599.4

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowinss
(ii) Lease liabilities (287.24) 287.24

(iii) Trade oavables 200.24 0.29 199.95

(iv) Other financial liabilities 426.1s 17.27 408.88

Other cunent liabilities 1.125.51 (7.38 1,132.89

Provisions 172.38 0.00 t72.38

Total current liabilities 1,924.28 10.17 (287.24) 2,20r.34

Total equity & liabilities 9,494.13 (1,092.33) (1,398.24) 10,882.19



Applied Research Intern.tionel Private Limited
CIN: U731 00DL1998PTC097280
Notes to the Consolidated Financiel Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs ullless otherwhe stated)

and Ilss for the ended on March 31 2024

oI
**

Particulars As per IGAAP
March 31. 2024

Reclassifications Remeasurement As per Ind AS
March 31.2024

Revenue from operations 9.2t7.59 4s.63 9,171.96
Olher income 341.8l (7s.s6) 4t7.37

9.559.40 (?9.94\Total revenue 9,589.34

Cost of materials consumed 1.348. l0 31.05 1,317.0s
Operating Expenses 985.33 7.81 977.52
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in progress

and traded soods

246.76 (0.00) 246.76

Emoloyee benefit expenses 2.688.s9 (833.94) ( 19.ss) 3.502.98
Finance cost 34 70 ( 128.01) 162.7t
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 348.49 (328.43) 676.92
Other expense 3,1 14.80 1,224.17 1,890.63
Prior period adjustments (net) 4t.16 35.90 5.26
Total expenses 8,807.93 464.98 (476.00) 8.779.85

Profit before tax 751.47 (494.9t\ 476.00 809.49

Share of Profit / (Loss) of Associates (s.26) 526

Profit Before Exceptional Item and Tax 751.47 (494.9r1 470.73 814.75

Tax expenses

Current tax 367.75 0.00 367.75
Previous year tax adiustment t.7 t (0.00) 1.7 1

Deferred tax /r04.79) 5.86 010,65)
264,67 5.86 258.81

Profit efter tax 486.80 (74.401 56t.20
Other comprehensive income for the year

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement of defrned benefit plans I 9.55 (19 5s)
income tax relatlng to items that will not be reclassified to

Drofit or loss

(8.e4) 894

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 4.49 (4.49\
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit

or loss

(0.82) 0.82

14.28Total comprehensive loss for the year (14.28)

486.80 (60.12)Total comprehensive income for the year 546.92

YAU



Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73100DL1998PTC097280

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Transition of Balance

.€o'I
*.*

Particulars As per IGAAP
Aoril 01.2023

Reclassifications Remeasurement As per Ind AS
Anril 01.2023

Assets

Non current assets

Property, plant & €quipments 762.37 0.00 762.37

Other intangible assets 2s0. l8 0.00 2s0. l 8

Risht ofuse ( 1,643.1 0) 1.643.10

I[vestment in Associates (e.61) 9.61

Financial assets

(ii) Loans
(iii) Others Financial Assets , i45 q? (0.00) 2,s4s.93

Deferred Tax Asset 45.88 (1 14. l0) I 59.98

Other non current assets (1 38.s6) I38 s6

Total non current assets 3,604.16 (138.56) (1,766.81) 5,509.73

Current assets

Inventories 318.24 318.24

Financial assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables 1,605 95 (2. r9) 1,608. l4
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 902.t9 9.7 | 892.48

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 2,053.16 1,877.61 175.55

(v) Loans 3.07 3.07

(vi) Others financial assets 182.16 (l.8 14.47) 1.996.64

Income tax assets (net) 982.40 982.40

Other current assets 630.75 4t.12 589.63

Total current assets 6.677.91 1.094.r8 5,583.73

Total assets 10,282.27 955.62 (1,766.81) 11.093.46

Equity & liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 153.00 1s3.00

Other equity 6.351.28 (30.23) 6,381 .5 I

Total equity 6.504.28 (30.23) 6,s34.51

Non current liabilities

Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities (r323.95\ 1,323.95

Provisions 432.06 (0.00) 432.06

Total non current lisbilities 432.06 (0.00) (r3x.9s) 1,756.01

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities (317.2s) 317.25

(iii) Trade payables 456.05 (0.22) 456 27

(iv) Other financial liabilities 286.05 2.46 283.s9

Other current liabilities 2,452 77 0.00 2.4s2.77

Provisions 151 06 151.06

Current tax liability (net)

Total current liabilities 3,34s.93 )'r< (317.zs',) 3.660.94

Total equity & liabilities 10,282.27 2.24 fi.67t.431 11,951.46

NO,DA
V
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Applied Research International Private Limited
CIN: U73100DL1998PTC097280
Notes to the Consolideted financial Statements
(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of
Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at Anril 01.2023

Total equity under Indian GAAP 7,072.94 6,504.28

Adiustment Impact - gain / (loss)

ECL Impact (44.12) (124 s8)

Prior Period Income 42.07

Prior Period Expenses (0.92)

Deferred tax impact on the aforesaid adiustments t29.72 I 14. l0
ROU Assets Depreciation (328.43)

Remeasurement of lease liability 2sr.46

Unwindrng of security deposit 0 31

Others (0.4s)

Total Ind As adiustments 8.94 30.23

Total equity under Ind AS 7.081.43 6,534.51

A. Exemptions applied:
(t) Mandatoryexceptions

(a) f,stimates :-
On assessment ofthe estimates made under the Indian GAAP financial statements, the Group has conoluded that there is no necessity to revise the estimates under Ind AS, as

there is no objective evidence of an effor in those estimates. However, estimates that were required under Ind AS but not required under Indian GAAP are made by the Group for

GAAP are listed below:

- Fair valuation of financial instruments caried at FVTPL
- Determination ofthe discounted value for financial instruments caffied are amortised cost.

- Impairment offinancial assets based on the expected credit loss model,

(b) Classification and measurement of financial assets:

accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.

(iD OptionalExceptions

optional exemptions:

(a) Deemed cost for property' plant and equipment:
Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all ofits property, plant and equipment as recognised in the fnancial statement as at lhe

date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per Indian GAAP and used that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustment for decommissioning

liabilities. Accordingly, the Group has elected to measure all ofits property, plant and equipment at their Indian GAAP carrying value as at transition dale April 01, 2023.

(b) Business combination
The Group has opted to apply Ind AS 103 business combination prospectively, Hence atl past business combination ( business combination that occured before the date of
transition to Ind As i.e. April 01, 2023) has not been restated.

( c) Deemed Cost of investment in subsidiaries

has elected to measure carrying values as per Indian GAAP as deemed cost for its investments held in subsidiary and associate and itsjoint venture.

The Group has elected to carry its investments in subsidiary and associate and its joint ventures at deemed cost being carrying amount under Indian GAAP on the transition date.

The Group has applied the impairment requirements oflnd AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS l0l, it has used reasonable and supportable information that

at the transition date.



Applied Research International PriYate Limited
CIN: U731(X)DLI998PTC097280
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated)

(iii) Reconciliation between Indian GAAP and Ind AS

A. Transition from Indian GAAp to Ind AS, balance sheet and statement of profit and loss accounts does not have any impact except the reclassification and remeasurement as

required by the Ind AS stated below.

B, Leases

Under Indian GAAp, tessee classified a lease as an operating or a finance lease based on whether or not the lease transferred substantially all risk and rewards incidenl to the

ownership ofan asset. Operating lease were expensed in the statement ofproft and loss. Under Ind AS I 16, all arrangement that fall under the defnition ofleaso €xcapt those for

of-use assets is amortised over the lease term on a straight line basis and lease liability is measured at amortised cost at the present value offuture lease payments

C. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Un<ler Indian GAAP, the security deposits paid for lease rent are shown at the transaction value. Whereas under Ind AS, the same are initially discounted and subsequently

rent.

D. Deferred Tax AdjustmentE

Under Indian GAAp, defered taxes were recognized for the tax effect oftiming differences between accounting profit and taxable profit for the year using the income statement

approach. Under Ind AS, defered taxes are recognized using the balance sheet for future tax consequences oftemporary differences between the carrying value ofassets and

tiaUitities and their respective tax bases. The above dilference, together with the consequential tax impact of the other Ind AS transitional adjustments lead to temporary

comprehensive income.

E. Actuarial Gain & loss

Under Indian GAAp, lhe actuariat gain/(toss) ofdefined benefit plans had been recognised in statement ofprofit and loss under employee benefits expense. Under Ind AS' the

remeasurement gaid(loss) on net defined benefit plans is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (net oftax).

F. l,oss allowance on Trade receivables

Under the previous GAAp, the Group has created provision for impairment ofreceivables consisting specific amount for incurred losses. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance

has been determined based on the Expected Credit Loss Model which has led to an increase in the amount ofprovision as on the date oftransition.

(lhis space is intentionally leJi blank)
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CIN: U73l00DLl99EPTC0972E0
Note! to the Couolidated Firarcial Statemetrt!
(Amountt rre itr INR Lrs ual$! otheryise rtated)

49 Other strtutory Informotion

i) The Cnoup do not haye ey benmi property, wherc my proceeding has b@n initiat€d or panding against the Group for holding my benmi property undcr thc

Benmi Tresaations (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) ild rules made theremder.

ii) The (houp hu not advmced or loued or invested (either from bonowed funds or shre premium or my other sources or kind offmds) to my other person(s) or

entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intemediaries"), with the uderstmding whether recorded in witing or otheilise, that the Intermediary shall :

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in my mmtrer whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Group ('Ultimate Betreficiaies") or

(b) provide my guilmree, secuity or the like oo beha.lf of the ultimate benefici{ies

iii) The Group ho not rweived uy fud from uy person(s) or Eotity(ies), includiog foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the uderstanding whether recorded in

witing or otheNise, that the Group shall :

(a) dir@tly or indir@tly, lend or invest in other persof,s or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party ("Ultimate
Beaeficiaies") or

(b) provide uy guarotee, security or the like on behalfofthe ultimate beneficiaies.

iv) The group does not curently have my wctioned working capital limits in excess of {5 crores itr aggregate from banks and/or finmcial institutiotrs, secured

sgaiost its cureot ssets.'

v) The Group do not have my such trmsaction whioh is not recorded in the books ofaccounts that has beef, smendered or disclosed as income duing the yeu in the

til drelsments under the locome Til Act, t 96 I (suoh 6, seilch or swey or ay other relevet provisioos of the Iocome Til Act, I 96 I .

vi) The Group has not beetr delded a willful defaulter by any bilk or finilcial institutiotr or other lender (c defined under the Compmies Act,20l3) or consortium

thereof, io rccordmce with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the Resetre Bok oflodia.

vii) The Group do not have ey chilges or stisfrction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

viii) The Group has not taded or invested in Crypto curency or ay other vinual ourrency duiog the finucial yer.

ix) The Group had grat€d loms or advilces in the nature of lous to the related parties (6 defioed under Compuies Act,2013), either severally or jointly with my
other person, that de repayable on demmd or without spwi$ing ily tems or period of repayment.

Type ofBorrower Amoutrt of loatr or
advance in the
neture of losn
outstatrditrg as at
March 31, 2025

Percentage to the
total of loans &
advances in the
oatlre of loans as at
March 31,2025

Amoutrt of loatr or

adyance in the
trature of loan

outstanding as al
March 31, 2024

Percetrtage to the

total of loans &
advances in the

March 31, 2024

Amount of loan or
advance io the
nature of loan
outstatrdiog as at
April l, 2023

Percentage to the

total of loans &
advances in th€
nature ofloans as al
April 1, 2023

Related Parties 150.00 89.',17% 0% 0%

x) The Group hu with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of srction 2 of the Compmies Act read with the Compmies (Restriction on number of
layers) Rules,20l7.

xi) The Group ho not revalued its property, plmt md equipment (including right-of-use osets) or intagible dsets or both during the current or previous yeu.

xii) The provisioos ofthe Compoies Act, 2013 md rules made thereunder requires that the Group uses only such acaounting softwae for maintainitrg its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail for each and every kansaation, creating an edit log of each chmge made in books of accoutrt along with the

date when such chmges were made ud ensuing that the audit trail cmot be disabled or tupered md audit trail has beeo presened with effect from April l,
2023. The Group hm taken all necessily steps to be compliut with the above requirement ofaudit trail fucrionality since it's effective date.

xiii) The Group do not have my trssetions with compmies struck offunder Section 248 of the Comproies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Compmies Act, 1956.

PAr.
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50 Disclosure under Section ll5BAA fu The Iucometax Act' l96l
In view of insertion of a new swtion - Section I I5BAA in The Incometu Act, 1961, as introduced by the Gorernmetrt of India, vide Taation (Amendment)

Ordioilce, 2019 dated 20th of September 2019, domestic compmies have been giwo option to pay til at redtced ra,:e of 22f/o, effective from finmcial yer 201 9-

20 (assessment yer 2O2O-21) & onwilds, subject to their adhering to certain oonditions specified therein,

The mmagement of the Holding Compmy hu deoided not to opt for the new til regime, under section I I5BAA of the Income-tu Aot, I 961, md consequently

impact ofnew tax rate is not considered in there consolidated fiomcial stalements. However, the Holding Compmy have option to opt for the scheme in future.

5l These Consolidated finucial statement were approved by BOD in its meeting held on 9th May 2025.

52 Previous year figures have been reglouped,/ reuranged, wherever considered nrcessary to conform to current yeil's classificatioo.

Moterial accounting policier

Se occompanyitrg rotes form atr itrtegral part ofthese cotrsolidatcd linrtrcisl statement!

As per our reporl ofeven date

For eld ol behalfof
G.M. Kapadia & Co.
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